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Notice of Annual General Meeting 

 
  
Notice is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Niraj Ispat 
Industries Limited will be on Monday, September 09th September, 2024 at 01:00 P.M. held at its 
Registered Office of the Company situated at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui 
Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi-110006 to transact the following business: 
 

ORDINARY BUSINESS : 

 

1. To consider and adopt the standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financials Year Ended March 31, 2024 i.e Balance Sheet as at 31st  March, 2024, the Statement 
of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st  March, 2024 along with the 
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year   
ended March 31, 2024 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditor's 
thereon placed before this Annual General Meeting, be and are hereby considered and 
adopted.” 

 

2. Appointment of Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry (DIN:06813394) as a director, liable to retire by 
rotation 

 

      To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification the following resolution as 
an Ordinary resolution: 

 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry (DIN:06813394) a Director, liable to retire by 
rotation who retires by rotation at this Meeting, and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by 
rotation.” 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors                                                                                                                      

                                                                                        For NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED                                                        
 

Place: New Delhi  
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Date: 12-08-2024 
Sd/- 

Chaitanya Chaudhry 
DIN: 06813394  

Designation: Director and CEO 
Address: KD-46 Kavi Nagar, 

Ghaziabad 20100 
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NOTES: 

 
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 

PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE 
COMPANY. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can 
act as a proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members and holding in aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total Share Capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten 
percent of the total Share Capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who 
shall not act as a proxy for any other Member. The instrument of Proxy, in order to be effective, 
should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not 
later than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is annexed to this 
Report. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by 
an appropriate resolution / authority, as applicable. 

 
2. Brief profile of the Director to be re-appointed including nature of his/her expertise, names of 

companies in which he/ she holds directorships and committee memberships shareholding in 
the Company and relationships with other directors, etc., are provided in Annexure of this 
Notice. 2. In terms of the MCA Circulars, the Notice of the 39th AGM and Annual Report for the 
financial year 2024, will be available on the website of the Company at www.nirajispat.in, on 
the website of National Securities Depositories Limited (“NSDL”) at www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

 
3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 

30th August, 2024 to 08th September, 2024 (both days inclusive). The book closure dates have 
been fixed in consultation with the Stock Exchanges. 

 
4. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice are open for inspection by the members at the 

Registered Office of the Company on all working days (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public 
Holidays) during business hours up to the date of the Meeting. The aforesaid documents will be 
also available for inspection by members at the Meeting. 

 

5. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules 
made there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports and other communications through 
electronic mode to those Members who have registered their e-mail address either with the 
Company or with the Depository. Members holding shares in demat form are requested to 
register their e-mail address with their Depository Participant(s) only. Members of the 
Company, who have registered their e-mail address, are entitled to receive such 
communication in physical form upon request.  

 
6. Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated that securities of listed 

companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form w.e.f. April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the 
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Company/RTA has stopped accepting any fresh lodgment of transfer of shares in physical form 
Members holding shares in physical form are advised to avail of the facility of dematerialization. 
 

7. The Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent in electronic mode to 

Members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s) 

unless the Members have registered their request for a hard copy of the same. Physical copy of 

the Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip are being sent to those Members who 

have not registered their e-mail IDs with the Company or Depository Participant(s). Members 

who have received the Notice of AGM, Annual Report and Attendance Slip in electronic mode 

are requested to print the Attendance Slip and submit a duly filled in Attendance Slip at the 

registration counter to attend the AGM.  

 
8. Voting through Electronic means:  

 
Pursuant to Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 20 and Rule 21 of 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 in pursuance with the directions 
issued by SEBI vide Circular No. CIR/CFD/DIL/6/2012 dated 13th July, 2014, the Company is 
pleased to provide the facility to Members to exercise their right at the Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-voting 
services provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). 
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PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015, THE BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS ELIGIBLE FOR RE-
APPOINTMENT ITEM NO. 2 IS AS FOLLOWS:- 

 


Name of Director Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry  

DIN 06813394 

Date of Birth 15/08/1995 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board 

 
27/02/2015 

Terms and Condition Re-appointment as Director of the company liable to retire 
by rotation 

Qualifications Under Graduated in Bachelor of Business Administration 

Expertise and Experience in 
specific functional areas 

Experience of 3 years as Financial Strategy Planning 

Names of other entities in which 
the person also holds the 
directorship. 

1.Raj Electricals And Allied Mfg. Private Limited 
2. Greetings Properties Private Limited 
3. Olive Infrastructure Private Limited 
4. Verve Infraprojects Private Limited  
5. Pickup Suppliers Pvt Ltd 
6.Parshuram Infrastructure Private Limited 
7. Olive Infosolutions Private Limited 
8. Chaudhry Theatres Private Limited 

Membership / Chairmanship of 
Committees of listed entities 
(includes only Audit Committee 
and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee) 

 - 

Remuneration last drawn 
(F.Y. 2022-23) 

11,00,000 per annum 

Shareholding in the Company 
(as on 31st March, 2023)  

- 

Relationship with other 
Directors, Manager and other 
Key Managerial Personnel of the 
company 

Relative 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: - 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, 06th September, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 

Sunday, 08th September, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 

NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 

Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 03rd September, 2024, may cast their 

vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the 

paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 03rd September, 2024. 

 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 

below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

 

      In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 

advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-

Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this 

will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 

under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 

be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for Ide AS 

e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  

Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
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launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 

hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 

the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to 

NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 

be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 

seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual 

Shareholders 

holding securities 

in demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 

through their user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 

users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/loginor www.cdslindia.com 

and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see 

the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 

by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 

demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided 

links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in 
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progress. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding securities 

in demat mode) 

login through their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name 

or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period  

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 

ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL 
Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at call at : 022 ‐ 4886 7000 and 

022‐ 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 

23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

 

 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
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available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 

using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 

or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 

password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 

change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 

to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 

i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 

digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or 

folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User 

ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 

process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 
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6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 

name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 

e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 

box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 

are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 

of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 

prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
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General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 

the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csvivekkumar@gmail.com with a copy marked to 

evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can 

also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 

on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 

care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 

through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 

and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call at : 022 ‐ 4886 7000 and 022‐ 2499 7000  or send a request to (Ms. 

Pallavi Mhatre, Manager or Ms. Soni Singh, Asst. Manager, National Securities Depository Limited, 

Trade World, ‘A’ Wing, 4th Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, SenapatiBapatMarg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 

– 400 013, at the designated)atevoting@nsdl.co.in 

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 

out in this notice: 

 

I. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 

card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
nirajispatindustries@gmail.com. 

II. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 

16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN 

(self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 

Card) to nirajispatindustries@gmail.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.Login 

method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode. 

III. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor procuring 

user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

IV. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
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Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 

account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Dear Members, 

 

Your Directors feel pleasure in presenting their 39th Annual Report together with the Audited 
Statements of accounts for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 

The performance of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 is summarized 
below: 

 

Particulars Year ended 31.03.2024      
(in lakhs) 

Year ended 31.03.2023      
(in lakhs) 

Total Income 408.33 627.38 

Total Expenses 298.12 404.61 

Profit/ Loss  before 
Taxation  

110.2 222.77 

Provision for 
Income Tax 

28.97 56.48 

Total Tax Expense  29.19 55.95 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax 81.02 166.80 
 

DIVIDEND 

 
Your Directors intend to plough back available resources for financial requirements and express their 
inability to recommend any dividend for the financial year. 

 
RESERVES 

 
The Company has transferred Rs. 5,00,000/- from the statement of profit and loss to general reserve 
during the year under review. 

 

 

BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 
The fiscal year 2023-24 was a period of relative stability. During the year under review, our Company 
achieved a profit of Rs. 110.20 Lacs before tax as against profit Rs. 222.77 Lacs in the preceding 
financial year. Your company hopes to increase its presence in the business in the Coming years, which 
may increase the top line and also its stability. 
 

     

Page 16



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Board consist of Four (4) Directors and One (1) CFO. 
 
Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry (Executive Director cum CEO), Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry (Non-Executive 
Director), Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma (Non Executive and Independent Director) and Mr. Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal (Non-  Executive Director and Independent Director) and Mr. Niraj Chaudhry (CFO) as on end of 
the Financial Year.  

 
Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhry (DIN:06813394) who retires by rotation at this meeting, and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a director of the Company liable to 
retires by rotation. 

 
 

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE  REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 

IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY 

 
      No significant and material orders were passed by any Regulator(s) or Court(s) or Tribunal(s) which 

would impact the going concern status of the company. 
 
 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 

COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE 
COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

 
      No material changes and commitment affecting the financial position of the company have occurred 

between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate and the date of this report. 
 

RELATED PARTY TRNSACTIONS 

 
All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in the ordinary 
course of Company’s business and on arm’s length basis. There are no materially significant related 
party transactions made by the Company with the Promoters, Key Management Personnel or other 
designated persons which may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 
However the related party transactions are given in Annexure-A. 

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report in compliances 
with Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is annexed marked as Annexure ‘B’. 
 
ANNUAL RETURN 
 
The extract of the Annual Return in Form No. MGT-9 as per Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013 is 
annexed as Annexure ‘C’ 
 

 

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY 
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During the year under review, the Company has no Subsidiary/Joint Venture/ Associate Company 
 

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND 

JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 
The Company has no subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies so this point is not applicable     

on the Company. 
 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 

143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

 

Auditors have not reported any frauds during the year under review. 

 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

 

 During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit under Section 73 of the    
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975. 

 

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
Outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rule 8(3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure 'D' to this Report. 

 
BOARD MEETINGS OF THE COMPANY 

The Board met 04 times during the financial year. During the 12 months period ended 31st March, 2024. 

Board Meetings were held on 10.04.2024, 26.05.2023, 27.06.2024, 06.09.2024, 11.08.2023, 10.11.2023, 

09.02.2024. 

Details of attendance of each Director at various meetings of the Company is as follows: 
 

Name 
Director 

of The Designation Category No. of 
Board 
Meetings 
Attended 

Last 
attended 

AGM 

Mrs. Vaishali Chaudhry Director Non-Executive 
Director 

07 Yes 

Mr. Anil Kumar 
Sharma 

Director Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

07 Yes 

Mr. Chaitanya 
Chaudhry 

Director Executive Director 07 Yes 

Mr. Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal 

Director Non-Executive & 
Independent Director 

07 Yes 
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

Following are the three committees constituted by the Board: 

1. Audit Committee. 
2. Shareholders Relationship Committee and. 
3. Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

  
 

1. Audit Committee  
 

       The Audit Committee of Company comprising of Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma (Non-Executive & 
Independent Director), Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal (Non-Executive & Independent Director) and Ms. 
Vaishali Chaudhry (Non-Executive Director). The constituted Audit Committee also meets the 
requirements under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
       The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma, a Non-Executive & Independent Director 

nominated by the Board. 
 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, interalia, include overseeing financial reporting 
process, reviewing the financial statements and recommending appointment of Auditors. 
 

During the year under review, the Committee met Four times on 26.05.2023, 11.08.2023, 
10.11.2023 and 09.02.2024. 
 
The Composition of Audit Committee is as follows: 

 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2023-24 

Held Attended 

Mrs.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 4 4 
Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 

Director 
& Independent 4 4 

Mr.   Rajeev Kumar Singhal Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 4 4 

 
 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 

The  Nomination and Remuneration of Company comprising of Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma (Non-
Executive & Independent Director), Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal (Non-Executive & Independent 
Director) and Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry (Non-Executive Director). 
 
The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma, a Non-Executive & Independent Director 
nominated by the Board. 
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The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows: 

 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2023-24 
Held Attended 

Mr.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 1 1 

Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 1 1 

Mr.   Rajeev Kumar Singhal Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 1 1 

 
 
 

The Committee’s scope of work includes identifying the persons who are qualified to become 
directors and who may be appointed in senior management and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal and carry out evaluation of every director’s performance, deciding on 
remuneration and policy matters related to remunerations of Directors and laying guidelines for 
remuneration package or compensation. 
 
The Committee has formulated a Nomination and Remuneration Policy relating to the appointment 
and remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The nomination 
and remuneration policy is annexed marked Annexure ‘E’. 

 

 

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee(SRC):  
 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of Company comprising of Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma (Non-
Executive & Independent Director), Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal (Non-Executive & Independent 
Director) and Ms. Vaishali Chaudhry (Non-Executive Director). 
 
The Chairman of the Committee is Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma, a Non-Executive & Independent Director 
nominated by the Board. 
 
The Committee inter alia approves issue of duplicate share certificates and oversees and reviews all 
matters connected with the securities transfer. The Committee also looks into redressal of 
shareholders complaints like transfer/transmission of shares, non- receipt of Annual Report, non 
receipt of declared dividends, etc. During the year, nil complaints were received from investors in 
respect of share transfers.  
 

During the year under review, the Committee met one time on 21.01.2024. 
 

Name of the Director Category Number of meetings 
during the financial year 
2023-24 
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Held Attended 

Mrs.  Vaishali Chaudhry Non-Executive Director 1 1 

Mr.   Anil Kumar Sharma Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 1 1 

Mr.   Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal 

Non-Executive 
Director 

& Independent 1 1 

 

 
 

OVERALL REMUNERATION 

 
Details of all elements of remuneration paid to all the Directors are given in the Corporate Governance 
Report. Details of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of Companies Act 2013 read with 
Rule V of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given 
in this report. 

 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNACE 

 

As per Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
the Compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions shall not apply in respect of the listed entity 
having paid up Equity Share Capital not exceeding Rupees Ten Crores and Net worth not exceeding 
Rupees Twenty Five Crores as on the last day of the previous financial year. However, as a good 
governance practice, the certificate on Corporate Governance is annexed and form part of this report as 
Annexure 'F'. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 
Even though the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility are not 
attracted to the Company yet the Company has been, over the years, pursuing as part of its corporate 
philosophy, an unwritten CSR policy voluntarily which goes much beyond mere philanthropic gestures 
and integrates interest, welfare and aspirations of the community with those of the Company itself in 
an environment of partnership for inclusive development. 

 

BOARDS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
While selecting Directors, the Company looks for an appropriate balance of skills, experience, 
independence and knowledge to enable them discharge their respective duties and responsibilities 
effectively. The Company has laid down a clear Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees. 

 

DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S) 

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming 
that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 
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APPOINTMENT OF COMPANY SECRETARY 

 
The Company has already appointed Mr. Shadman Khan, an Associate Member of the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India, as Company Secretary of the Company to hold the office w.e.f. 09th 
February, 2023. 
 

 

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY FOR 
DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair 
and transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, 
integrity and ethical behavior, the Company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy. This policy 
is has been uploaded on the website of the Company- www.nirajispat.in. 

 
 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

 

The Company has a Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace and 
has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. No case was reported during the year under review.   

 
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 134 (3(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors Responsibility 
statement, it is hereby confirmed that:- 
 
(i) In the preparation of the Annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any. 
 
(ii) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the 
Company for that period. 

 
(iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 
(iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 on 

a going concern basis. 
 
(v) The Director had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by company and that internal 

financial controls are adequate and operating effectively. 
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(vi) The Director had devised proper system to ensure compliance with provision of all applicable laws 
and such is adequate and operating effectively. 

 

 

AUDITORS 

 

i. Statutory Auditors 

 

 
M/s Sanjeev Anand & Associates, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company hold the  
office from the conclusion of the 37th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 42nd Annual 
General Meeting at such remuneration as may mutually be agreed upon between the auditors and the 
Board of Directors of the Company 
 
The Company has received letter from them to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within 
the prescribed limits under Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified 
for such appointment within the meaning of Section 139 (1) of the said Act. 

 

ii. Secretarial Auditor 
 
The secretarial audit of the Company has been conducted by M/s. V Kumar and Associates, Company 
Secretaries (COP No.:10438, FCS: 8976) and their report on the secretarial audit for the year under 
review is annexed hereto is attached as ANNEXURE ‘G'. 

 

AUDITORS REPORT 

 
All Observations made in the Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes forming part of the Financial 
Statements are self-explanatory and no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks have been made 
by the Statutory Auditors in the said Report. 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any reservation, qualification or adverse remark . 

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations andDR) 
Regulations 2015, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual 
Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as level of 
engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the 
Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire 
Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried 
out by the Independent Directors. The Board also carried out annual performance evaluation of the 
working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration as well as Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
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PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT MADE UNDER 186 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT,2013 

 
The Company has given Loan or Guarantee or made Investment under Section 186 as per the limits 
specified under Sec 186(2) of the Companies Act 2013. 

 
 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

A. Increase in Authorised Share Capital and Preferential Allotment of Shares 

 

                      During the year under review, there is no change in Authorised Capital of the Company.  
 
 

B. Issue of equity shares with differential rights 

 
Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights so no disclosure is required 
as per rule 4 (4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014 

 

C. Issue of sweat equity shares 

 

Company has not issued sweat equity shares, so no disclosure is required as per rule 8(13) of 
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014. 

 

D. Issue of employee stock options 

 

Company has not issued employee stock options, so no disclosure is required as per rule 12(9) of 
the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014. 

 

E. Provision of money by Company for purchase of its own share by employees or by trustee 
for the benefit of employees 

 
The Company has not made any provision for purchase of its own share by employees or by                     
trustee for the benefit of employees so no disclosure is required as per rule 16(4) of the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014. 

 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERIAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 
The Company has adequate internal financial control system commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business with regards to purchase of Fixed Assets. The activities of the 
Company do not involve purchase of inventories and sale of goods and services. 

For the purposes of effective internal financial control, the Company has adopted various procedures for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
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To ensure adequacy of internal financial controls, the procedures adopted by the Company are based on 
the following parameters: 

 

(a) Familiarity with Policies and  Procedures  –  the  related  policies  and  procedures  and  the  
changes there to ,if any ,are communicated to the employees at the time of joining and it is ensured 
that such person understands the policies or procedures correctly. 

(b) Accountability of Transactions – There is a proper delegation of authorities and responsibilities so as 
to ensure accountability of any transaction. 

(c) Accuracy & Completeness of Financial Statements/ Reports – For accuracy and completeness of 
information, reconciliation procedure and multiple checking at different level have been adopted. To 
avoid human error, computer software is extensively used. 

(d) Retention and Filing of Base Documents – All the source documents are properly filed and stored in a 
safe manner. Further, important documents, depending upon their significance are also digitized. 

(e) Segregation of Duties – It is ensured that no person handles all the aspects of a transaction. To avoid 
any conflict of interest and to ensure propriety, the duties have been distributed at different levels. 

(f)    Timeliness – It is also ensured that all the transactions are recorded and reported in a timely manner. 
 

The procedures are also reviewed by the Statutory Auditors and the Directors of the Company from 
time to time. There has also been proper reporting mechanism implemented in the organization for 
reporting any deviation from the procedures. 

 
 

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

 
Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed dividend declared and paid in past years, the provisions of Section 
125 of the Companies Act, 2013, do not apply. 
 
 

 

SEGMENT 

 
The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Polyester Buttons which are governed by 
the same set of risks and returns and as such are in the same segment. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 
Company has implemented proper risk management policy including identification therein of element of 
risk. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Your Directors wish to place on record and acknowledge their appreciation for the continued support 
and co- operation received from Government agencies and the shareholders. Your Directors also record 
their appreciation for the total dedication of employees at all levels. 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors            
For   Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

 

Place: New Delhi  

 

 

 

 

 Date: 12.08.2024                                                            Sd/-                                           Sd/- 

                               Vaishali Chaudhry                                                                Chaitanya Chaudhary 

                                   Director                           Director      

                          DIN: 01719640             DIN: 06813394 

      Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar          Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar 

 Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh 
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ANNEXURE 'A' 
 

FORM NO. AOC -2 
 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto. 
 

 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis. 

 

Name (s) 

of the 

related 

party & 

nature of 

relations

hip 

Nature of 

contracts

/arrange

ments/tr

ansaction

s 

Duration 

of the 

contract

s/arrang

ements/

transacti

ons 

Salient terms 

of the 

contracts or 

arrangements 

or transaction 

including the 

value, if any 

Justification 

for entering 

into such 

contracts or 

arrangements 

or transactions 

Date 

of 

appro

val by 

the 

Board 

Amount 

paid as 

advances, 

if any 

Date on which the 

special resolution 

was passed in 

General meeting 

as required under 

first proviso to 

section 188 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

 

 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 

Name (s) of 

the related 

party & 

nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

contracts/arr

angements/tr

ansactions 

Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/t

ransactions 

Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the 

value, if any 

 

Date (s) of 

approval by 

the Board, if 

any 

Amount paid 

as advances, 

if any 

Chaitanya 

Chaudhry 

Remuneration  During the F.Y. 2023-24 15,00,000/- 06.09.2023 NIL 

Vaishali 

Chaudhry 

Remuneration During the F.Y. 2023-24 2,40,000/- 10.04.2023 NIL 

Niraj 

Chaudhry 

Remuneration During the F.Y. 2023-24 1,20,000/- 10.04.2023 NIL 

Pickup 

Suppliers Pvt. 

Ltd. 

Loan & 

Advances 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 1,88,75,000 10.04.2023 NIL 
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Pickup 

Suppliers Pvt. 

Ltd. 

Loan 

Received Back  

During the F.Y. 2023-24 82,25,000/- 10.04.2023 NIL 

Himgiri 

Hotels Pvt. 

Ltd. 

Interest 

Earned 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 6,89,141/- 10.04.2023 Nil 

Habitat 

Infrastructure 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Interest 

Earned 
During the F.Y. 2023-24 3,50,475/- 10.04.2023 Nil 

Spiderman 

Infrastructure 

Pvt. Ltd 

Interest 

Earned 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 24,71,794/- 10.04.2023 Nil 

Carnation 

Projects Pvt. 

Ltd 

Interest 

Earned 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 91,648 /- 10.04.2023 Nil 

Lupin 

Infrastructure 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Interest 

Earned 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 13,61,224/- 10.04.2023 Nil 

Verve 

Infraprojects 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Interest 

Earned 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 8,80,733/- 10.04.2023 Nil 

Pickup 

Suppliers Pvt. 

Ltd. 

Interest 

Earned 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 17,72,014/- 10.04.2023 Nil 

North India 

Petrochemical

s Pvt. Ltd. 

Interest 

Earned 

During the F.Y. 2023-24 5,11,632/- 10.04.2023 Nil 

 
 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     

For Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

Place: New Delhi   

Date:12.08.2024 Sd/- Sd/- 

 Vaishali Chaudhry                                Chaitanya Chaudhary 
                                      Director                                                       Director 

DIN: 01719640                                         DIN: 06813394 
                             Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,                          Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,    

                            Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh                         Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh 
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ANNEXURE 'B' 
 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

1. OPERATING RESULTS OF THECOMPANY 

 
During the Financial Year under consideration the performance of the Company was 
satisfactory. Net Profit for the year 2023-24 stood at Rs.  81.02 Lacs as against Net Profit of Rs. 
166.80 Lacs in the year 2022-23. Furthermore, the total Revenue from operation for the year 
ended March 31st, 2024 stood at Rs. 408.33 Lacs as compared to Rs. 627.38 Lacs revenue for the 
year 2022-23. 

 
2. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT 

 
The principal activities of the Company are: 

 
i. The Company carries on the business of manufacturing of polyester buttons in two or four 

thread holes. Used in dresses, sweaters, pouches and shirts, these buttons can be availed in 

a variety of colors, sizes and designs. Due to their numerous advantages, these buttons are 

widely acknowledged in residential and commercial sectors. We are offering these polyester 

buttons to our clients at cost-effective prices. 

ii. The Company has enriched with vast industry experience, we are offering an exquisite range 

of Polyester Buttons. At our vendors' end, these buttons are designed using remarkable 

quality of materials that are procured from certified sources of the market. To ensure 

flawlessness, these buttons are comprehensively checked on various parameters by the 

team. 

 
3. THREATS 

 
I. With the increase in business segment, the competition has increased from Domestic and 

other developed countries. 
II. Threats for this Industry are very common and every person is aware of the threats and the 

risks involved with this Industry. 

 
4. PROSPECT &OUTLOOK 

 
The Company presents the analysis of the Company for the year 2023-24 &  its outlook for the 
future. This outlook is based on assessment of the current business environment. It may vary 
due to future economic & other developments both in India and abroad. 
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5. RISKS ANDCONCERNS 
 

The Company has taken adequate preventive and precautionary measures to overcome all 
negative factors responsible for low trend to ensure steady growth. 

 

 
6. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIRADEQUACY 

 
There are well-established procedures for Internal Controls for operations of the Company. The 
finance & audit functions are well equipped with professionally experienced qualified personnel 
& play important roles in implementing the statutory obligations. The Company has constituted 
Audit Committee for guidance and proper control of affairs of the Company. 

 
7. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
Human Resources are highly valued assets at Niraj Ispat Industries Limited. The Company seeks 
to attract, retain and nurture technical & managerial talent across its operations and continues 
to create, sustain the environment that brings out the best in our people with emphasis on 
training, learning & development. It aims at career progression and fulfilling satisfactory needs.  
Performance is recognized and rewarded through up gradation & job enrichment, performance 
incentives. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     

For Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 
 

Place: New Delhi  

 

 

 

Date: 12-08-2024  
                            Sd/-          

 
                       Sd/- 

      Vaishali Chaudhry                               Chaitanya Chaudhary 
                                                             Director                                                  Director 

              DIN: 01719640                                     DIN: 06813394 
                                                                      Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,                 Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 

                                                                           Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh     Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh 
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                                                                                                            ANNEXURE 'C' 

                         

 

                        ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

FORM NO. MGT-9 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
                       As on Financial Year Ended on 31

st March, 2024 
 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHERDETAILS: 

 

CIN L27106DL1985PLC021811 

Registration date 19th August, 1985 

Name of the Company Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

Category  / sub-category  of the Company Company limited by shares 

Address of the Registered office & Contact 

Details 

5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market, Gali Peti 

Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar  Bazar, 

 New Delhi- 110006 

Tel: 0120-6526390,23551821 
 

Email: nirajispatindustries@gmail.com 

Website: www.nirajispat.in 
Whether listed Company Yes 

Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 

D153A, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, 

Phase I, New Delhi 110020 

Phone: 011- 64732681/82 

Contact Person: Mr. Virender Kumar Rana 

Mobile No: 9818456709 
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:- 

 

S. 
N 
o. 

Name and Description of 
main products/services 

NIC Code of the 
product/service 

% to total turnover of the 
Company 

1 Manufacturing of Polyester Buttons 3699 88.77 

 

 

17 
 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY ANDASSOCIATECOMPANIES 
 

S.No Name & 
Address of the 
Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary 
/Associate 

% of 
shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

 N.A N.A N.A. N.A N.A 

 
 
 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage  of Total   Equity) 
 
 
i. Category-wise Share Holding 

Category 
of 
Sharehold
ers 

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year (01.04.2022) 

No. of Shares held at the end of 
the year (31.03.2023) 

% 
Chang

e 
during 
The 
year 

 Demat Physic
al 

Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

A. Promoter          

1) Indian          

a) Individual/ 
HUF 

321100 0 321100 53.52 321088 0 321088 53.51       0 

b) Central 
Govt 

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) State 
Govt(s) 

00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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d) Bodies 
Corp 

126400       0 126400 21.06    126400 0 126400 21.06 0 

e) Banks / FI 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f) Any Other 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0       0 

Sub-
total(A)(1):- 

447500     0 447500 74.59 447488 0 447488 74.58 0 

2) Foreign 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

a)NRIs- 
Individua

ls 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b)Other- 
Individua

ls 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) Bodies  
Corp. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) Banks 
/ FI 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e) Any  
Other…. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sub-total 
(A)(2):- 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 
Shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A)=(A)(1)+(
A)(2) 

447500 0 447500 74.59 447488 0 447488 74.58      0 

B. Public 
Shareholdin
g 

         

1. Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

a) Mutual 
Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) Central 
Govt 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) State 
Govt(s) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e) Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

f) Insurance 
Companie
s 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

g) FIIs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

i) Others 
(specify) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
Sub-total 
(B)(1) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2. Non 
Institutions 

         

a) Bodies 
Corp. 

(i) Indian 
(ii)Overseas 

 
12860 
 
0 

 
110 

 
0 

 
12970 
 
0 

 
2.16 

 
0 

 
12860 

 
0 

 
110 

 
0 

 
12970 

 
0 

 
2.16 
 
0 

 
     0 

 
0 

b) Individuals 
(i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
uptoRs. 1 
lakh 

 
(ii) 

Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh 

 
 
 
 

 37990 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

36400 
 

 
 
 
 

54240 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10000 

 
 
 
 

92230 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
46400 

 
 
 
 

15.37 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
7.73 

 
 
 
 

37990 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
36400 

 
 
 
 

54240 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10000 

 
 
 
 

92242 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
46400 

 

 
 
 
 

15.37 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
7.73 

 
 
 
 

   0 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
0 

c) Others(Spe
cify) 

0 900 900 0.15 0 900 900 0.15 0 

Sub-
total(B)(2) 

87250 65250 152500 25.42 87250 65250 152512 25.42 0 

Total Public 
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(
B)(2) 

87250 65250 152500 25.42 87250 65250 152512 25.42 0 

C. Shares held 
by Custodian 
for GDRs 
&ADRs 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Grand Total 534750 65250 600000 100.00 534750 65250 600000 100.00 0 
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ii.Shareholding of Promoter 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(A+B+C) 

S. 
No 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

Shareholding at 
the beginning of 
the year 

Share holding at the end of the year  

  No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compa
ny 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged 
/ 
encumb
er- red 
to total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compa
ny 

% of 
Shares 
Pledged 
/ 
encumbe 
red to 
total 
shares 

% change in 
share holding 
during the year 

 
1 

Madhu 
Chaudhry 

 
149600 

 
24.93 

 
0 

 
149600 

 
24.93 

 
0 

 
0 

 
2 

Neeraj 
Chaudhary 
HUF 

 
 

54300 

 
 

9.05 

 
 

0 

 
 

54300 

 
 

9.05 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 

 
3 

Niraj Steels 
LLP 

 
 

24600 

 
 

4.10 

 
 

0 

 
 

24600 

 
 

4.10 

 
 

0 

 
 

0 
 
4 

Pickup 
Suppliers 
Private 
Limited 

 
 
 

53900 

 
 
 

8.98 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

53900 

 
 
 

8.98 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 
5 Haryant 

Stainless 
Steels LLP 

 
 
 

47900 

 
 
 

7.98 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

47900 

 
 
 

7.98 

 
 
 

0 

 
 
 

0 
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(ii) Change In Promoter’s shareholding (please specify if there is no change) 
 

Sl. 
No 

 Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

  No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of the 
company 

 At the beginning of the year 447500 74.59 447500 74.59 
 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons 
for increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/ transfer 

/bonus/sweat 

 
12 Shares 

transfer by 
Vaishali 

Chaudhry 
during 

Financial 
Year 

 
         0.1 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 Equity etc.     

 At the end of the Year 447488 74.58 447488 74.58 

 

(iii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and 

Holders of GDRs andADRs): 

 
Sl. 
No 

Name of Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Increase/ 
Decrease in  
Shareholding 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 
the year 

  No. of 
shares  
at the 
beginning 

% of total 
shares of the 
Company 

 No. of shares  
at the end 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
Company 

1. Vijay Kumar Agarwal 20000 3.33 Nil 20000 3.33 

2. Jagmohan Nayyar 13400 2.23 Nil 13400 2.23 

3. Karan Nayyar 13000 2.16 Nil 13000 2.16 

4. Omolara Textiles Private 

Limited 

12860 2.14 Nil 12860 2.14 

5. Neeta Nayyar 5900 0.98 Nil 5900 0.98 

6. Shahab Tariq 5800 0.97 Nil 5800 0.97 

7. Ravindra Kumar Garg 5000 0.83 Nil 5000 0.83 

8. Ashok Kapoor 4150 0.69 Nil 4150 0.69 

9. Mohammed Aadil 4000 0.67 Nil 4000 0.67 
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10. Laxmi Devi 4000 0.67 Nil 4000 0.67 

 
 

 

(iv) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

Sl. 

No 

 Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 1stApril, 2022 

Shareholding at the end of 
the  year 31

st March, 2023 

 For Each of the 

Directors &KMP 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 
company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 
company 

1 Vaishali 

Chaudhry 

30400 5.07 30388 5.06 

2 Chaitanya 

Chaudhary 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

3 Anil Kumar 

Sharma 

3000 0.5 3000 0.5 

4 Rajeev Kumar 
Singhal 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 

 

V INDEBTNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

(Rs. In Lakh) 
 Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 
Unsecured 

Loans 
Deposits Total 

Indebtedness 
Indebtness at the beginning 
of the financial year 

I) Principal Amount 
II) Interest due 

but not paid 
III) Interest accrued 

but not due 

 

 
      - 

 

 
132.10 

 

 
NIL 

 

 
132.10 

 

Total (I+II+III) 

 

      -  
 

137.31 
 

NIL 
 

137.31 
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Change in Indebtedness 
during the financial year 

 Addition 
 Reduction 

 
 

 
   - 

- 

 
 

 
0.55 

- 

 
 

 
--- 
Nil 

 
 

 
0.55 

 

Net Change     -       0.55 NIL 0.55 

Indebtedness at the end of 

the financial year 
I) PrincipalAmount 
II) Interest duebut 

not paid 
III) Interest accrued 

but notdue 

 

 
          - 

 

 
132.65 

 

 
NIL 

 

 
132.65 

 
Total (I+II+III) 

 
   NIL 

 
132.65 

 
NIL 

 
132.65 

 
 

VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Remuneration to Managing 
Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager 

 

Sl. 
no 

Particulars  of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount 

 Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) ofthe 
Income-taxAct, 
1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2)  Income-tax  Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income- tax Act,1961 

 

 
                       - 
 

NIL 

                               NIL 
 
 

 

 

 
       - 

 
               NIL 

NIL 

 Stock Option - - 
 Sweat Equity - - 
 Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify 

- - 

 Others, please specify - - 

Page 38



 
    
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
 

 

 Total (A)  - 
 Ceiling as per the Act  - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A.  Remuneration  to other Directors: 

 Independent Directors 
 
·Fee for attending board 
committee meetings 
· Commission 
-  Others, please specify 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sharma 
Mr. Rajeev Kumar Singhal 

 
 

NIL 
NIL 

 
 
 
 

                 NIL 
NIL 

 

 

B. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

 

Sl. 

no. 

Particulars of Remuneration Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

  CEO Company 

Secretary 

CFO Total 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars  of Remuneration Name of Directors Total amount 

 Other Non-Executive 
   Directors 

Vaishali Chaudhry Rs. 240,000 

· Fee for attending board 
committee meetings 

             NIL NIL 

· Commission 
· Others, please specify 

NIL NIL 
NIL 

·    

  
 

    
 Total (2) NIL                     Rs. 240,000 
 Total (B)=(1+2) NIL Rs. 240,000 

 Total Managerial 
Remuneration 

NIL Rs. 240,000 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL 
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1. Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions containedin 

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu ofsalary 

 

  4,00,000 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 
 

 

1,50,000 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 

 
 

 

1,20,000 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 
 

 

7,86,000 
 
 

NIL 
NIL 
 

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL 

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL 

4. Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others, specify 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

NIL 

 
 

NIL 

5. Others, please specify  

NIL 
 

NIL 
 

NIL 
 

NIL 

 Total 6,00,000 
 

66,000 1,20,000 
 

7,86,000 

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/  COMPOUNDING  OFOFFENCES: 
 

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty/ 
punishment/compounding 
Fees imposed 

Authority 
IRD/NCLT/ 
Court 

Appeal made 
if any give 
details 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors     
For Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

 
 

Place: New Delhi   

Date: 12.08.2024  
                Sd/-      

 
      Sd/- 

Vaishali Chaudhry                           Chaitanya Chaudhary 
          Director                                                    Director 
      DIN: 01719640                                       DIN: 06813394 

     Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar,                          Address: KD-46, Kavi  Nagar, 
Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh                                                 Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh      
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ANNEXURE 'D' 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO. 

The Information Under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31st, 2024 is given here below and 
forms part of the Director’s Report. 

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

(a) Measures taken: The Company is aware of the importance of conservation of energy and 
continuous efforts are being made to reduce energy cost at all levels. Special attention is being 
given for the use of energy efficient equipments. During the year the Company Replaced the regular 
fluorescent tube lights with new energy saver LED tube Lights at factory. 

(b) Additional investments and proposal for reduction of consumption of energy:  

The Company already worked on reducing carbon footprint in all its area of operation through 
initiatives like placing the solar panel 40.8 KW which generates approx. 180 units per day. The 
Management is committed to further identify new areas where the conventional equipments can 
be replaced by latest equipments so as to reduce the consumption of various sources of energy. 

(c) Impact of the measures (a) and (b):The Company has achieved reduction in energy costs. 

Total energy consumption and consumption per unit of production in prescribed Form ‘A’ is given 
below: 

FORM – A 

Power and Fuel Consumption 2023-24 

1. Electricity 
 
Total Amount (Rs. In Lakh) 

 
 
0 

2. Own Generation (Through Diesel Generator) 
Cost (Rs.) 

 
- 

  

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

Efforts made in technology absorption as per Form B is given below: 
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FORM – B 

I. Research and Development (R & D) 
 

1. Specific areas: The R & D activities of the Company are aimed at quality control and 
improvement/up-gradation of the product range. 
2. Benefits derived: Improvement in product quality, development of new value added 
products and cost effectiveness. 
3. Future plan of action: Development of more value added products and making the product 
more cost effective. 
4. Expenditure on R & D: Expenditure on Research & Development are difficult to ascertain as 
the same staff and equipments are used for production and quality control. 

II. Technology Absorption, adoption and innovation: 

1. Efforts made: Sustained efforts are being made towards upgrading the process technology. 

2. Benefits derived: The Company has been able to improve the quality of its existing products 

3. Particulars of technology imported: Nil 

 

III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
(a) Efforts : Various efforts are being made to explore and secure new export market for Company’s  

Products. 

(b) Earning and outgo   :                        2022-23          2023-24 

i) Foreign Exchange earning   :                       NIL               NIL 

ii) Foreign Exchange outgo   :                      NIL              NIL 

(b) Value of Imports on CIF Basis          2022-23                  2023-24 

Capital Goods (in lacs)   :                           Nil                       Nil 
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Annexure –‘E’ 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 
This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto, as amended from time to time. 
This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the 
Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors.  

 

DEFINITIONS 
“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services 
rendered by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961;  

 

“Key Managerial Personnel” means:  

(i) Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a Whole-time  

Director;  

(ii) Chief Financial Officer;  

(iii) Company Secretary; and  

(iv) such other officer as may be prescribed.  

 

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of its core 
management team excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise all members of 
management of rank equivalent to General Manager and above, including all functional heads.  

 

OBJECTIVE 

The objective of the policy is to ensure that  
 • the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retainand motivate 
directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;  
 • relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and  
• remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involvea balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to 
the working of the company and its goals.  

 

Role of the Committee: 

The role of the NRC will be the following:  

• To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director.  

• To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.  
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• To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in this policy.  

• To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance.  

• To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.  

• To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management.  

• To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size.  

• Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing.  

• To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/ or enforced by 
any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.  

• To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its 
duties.  

 

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR 
PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 

(a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience 
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his 
/ her appointment, as per Company’s requirements.  
 

(b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience w.r.t. the position for 
which his/her appointment is considered. The Committee has authority to decide whether 
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient/ satisfactory for the 
position.  

 

(c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as its Managing 
Director, Whole-time Director or Manager who has attained the age of seventy years.  

 

Provided that the term of the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of  

seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution.  

 

TERM / TENURE 

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing Director, Whole-time Director 
or Manager for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier 
than one year before the expiry of term.  

b) Independent Director 

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of 
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the 
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.  

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such 
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Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiration of three years of ceasing to 
become an Independent Director.  

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be 
appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.  

 

EVALUATION 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel yearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary.  

 

REMOVAL 

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or 
Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and in compliance of the Companies Act, 

2013, rules and regulations made there under and the policy of the Company.  
 

RETIREMENT 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions 
of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the 
Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise 
even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 36 

 

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MAN POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO 
DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 

(1) Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole- Remuneration to Managing Director/ Whole---
time Directors time Directors: 

(a) The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director/ Whole-time 
Directors/ Manager etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and the approvals 
obtained from the Members of the Company. 

 

(b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the 
Board of Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing 
Director/ Whole-time Directors.  

  

(2) Remuneration to Non- (2) Remuneration to Non-Executive/ Executive/ Executive/ 

Independent Directors: Independent Directors: Independent Directors:  
(a) The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other 
remuneration as permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of 
sitting fees shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.  
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(b) All the remuneration of the Non- Executive/ Independent Directors (excluding remuneration 
for attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be 
subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or 
any other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be 
such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved 
by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.   

 

(c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be 
eligible to participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company.  

 

(d) Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive /Independent Directors for services rendered 
which are of professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the 
purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied:  

 

i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and  

ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the requisite qualification for the 
practice of that profession.  

 

(3) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Se (3) Remuneration to Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management: Management: 

 

(a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed 
pay and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

(b) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, 
contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time.  

 

 

 

 

(c) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company 
and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided 
annually or at such intervals as may be considered appropriate 

 

IMPLEMENTATION 

 

The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in 
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate. The 
Committee may delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Niraj Chaudhry, CFO, of Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, to the best of my knowledge and belief 
hereby certify that: 

 

(a) I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year and that to 
the best of my knowledge and belief: 

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 
or contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations 

b) There are no transactions entered into by the Company during the year that are fraudulent, 
illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct; 

c) I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company 
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 
Committee, deficiencies in the design and operations of such internal controls, if any, of 
which I am aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

d) I have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 
(i) Significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the year under 

reference; 
(ii) Significant changes in the accounting policies during the year and that the same has been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and 
(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 

if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's 
internal control system over financial reporting. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
FOR NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 12.08.2024 

Sd/- 
Name: Niraj Chaudhry 

Designation: CFO 
Address: KD-46, Old Kavi Nagar, 

Ghaziabad-201002, U.P. 
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Annexure-F 

 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
 

The Members of 

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by NIRAJ ISPAT 
INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the year ended on March 31, 2024 as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulations 
2015. 

 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of Management. Our 
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company to 
ensure compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we 
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated 
in the above-mentioned Listing Agreement. 

 
We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the 
Company as per the records maintained by the Investors Grievance Committee. 

 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi  

Dated: 10/08/2024 

For V Kumar & Associates 
Company Secretary In Practice 

 

 

                                   Sd/- 

                                 Vivek Kumar 

                                 FCS: 8976 

                                  COP : 10438 
UDIN: F008976F000944295 
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ANNEXURE 'G’ 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 

 
  The Members, 

Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, 
5140-41/34 F/F Chaudhry Market,  
Gali Petiwali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar,  
Delhi -110006 

 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by Niraj Ispat Industries Limited (hereinafter called the 
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 
Based on our verification of the Niraj Ispat Industries Limited books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided 
by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in 
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Niraj Ispat Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st 
March, 2024 according to the provisions of: 

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there  under; 

 
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

  
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to 

the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings; - Not applicable as the Company has not made any such transaction during the 
financial year under review; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
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India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations,2011; Not applicable as there is no substantial acquisition during the period under 
review;  

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2018;  Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the period under review;  

 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021; Not applicable as the Company has not given any ESOP to its employees and 
directors during the period under review; 

 
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; Not applicable as the Company has not issued any non-convertible securities 
during the period under review; 

 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations,1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; Not applicable as the 
Company has not registered or any change Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the 
period under review; 

 
f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; Not 

applicable as the Company has not delisted/proposed to delist its equity shares from any stock 
exchange during the financial year under review; 

 
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not 

applicable as the Company has not bought back/proposed to buyback any of its securities during the 
financial year under review. 

 

(v)  The other applicable laws on this Company are as follows: 
 

a. Factories Act,1948 

b. Industrial DisputeAct,1947 
c. The Payment of Wages Act,1936 
d. The Minimum Wages Act,1948 
e. Employees’ State Insurance Act,1948 
f. The Payment of Bonus Act,1965 
g. The Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 
h. The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act,1970 
i. The Maternity Benefit Act,1961 
j. The Child Labour(Prohibition & Regulation)Act,1986 
k. The Industrial Employment (Standing Order) Act,1946 
l. The Employee Compensation Act,1923 
m. The Apprentices Act,1961 
n. Equal Remuneration Act,1976 
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o. The Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act,1956  

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
(iii) Equity Listing Agreement upto the extent applicable. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned as abovementioned. 

 
 

We further report that: 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 

 
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the company got listed at National Stock Exchange 
of India. 

 

Date: 10.08.2024  
Place:-New Delhi                                                                                                 For V Kumar and  Associates 

Company Secretaries in Practice 
 

                                                                                                                             Sd/- 
                                                                                                                             Vivek Kumar        

                                                                                                                                   FCS No: - 8976 
                                                                                                                                    CP No: - 10438 

UDIN: F008976F000944341 
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 'I' and form part 
of an integral part of this report. 

Annexure 'I' 

To, 
The Members, 
Niraj Ispat Industries Limited, 
5140-41/34 F/F Chaudhry Market, Gali 
Petiwali 
RuiMandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi – 110006 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 
Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on this secretarial record based on our audit. 

 

We have the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test 
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial record. We believe that the processes 
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of the 
accounts of the company. 

 

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc 

 

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 

 
The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

Date: 10.08.2024  
Place:-New Delhi                                                                                                 For V Kumar and  Associates 

Company Secretaries in Practice 
 

                                                                                                                             Sd/- 
                                                                                                                             Vivek Kumar        

                                                                                                                                   FCS No: - 8976 
                                                                                                                                    CP No: - 10438 

UDIN: F008976F000944341 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To, 

The Members, 

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED  

5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, 

Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi-110006  

 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from 

directors of NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED having CIN: L27106DL1985PLC021811 and having 

registered office at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi -

110006, (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) produced before us by the Company for the 

purpose of issuing this certificate, in accordance with regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause 

(10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing  Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and 

explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers and representation given by the 

management we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated 

below for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being 

appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority: 

 

Sr. No. DIN Name of Director Date of Appointment in 

Company 

1 00284223 RAJEEV KUMAR SINGHAL 31/03/2015 

2 01719640 VAISHALI CHAUDHRY 29/11/2001 

3 02664381 ANIL KUMAR SHARMA 15/06/2006 

4 06813394 CHAITANYA CHAUDHRY 27/02/2015 

 

 

It is solemnly the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant declarations and disclosures with 

complete and accurate information in compliance with the relevant provisions. Further, ensuring the 

eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification. 
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This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.     

 

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Dated:10/08/2024 

 
 
 

For V Kumar & Associates 
     Company Secretary In Practice 

 

 

                                                          Sd/- 

                                                   Vivek Kumar 

                                        FCS: 8976 

                                                   COP : 10438 
                                                                                                                     UDIN : F008976F000944372 
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT  

 

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the 
Managing Director. The Code of Conduct as adopted is available on the Company's website. I 
confirm that the Company has in respect of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023, received from 
the Senior Management team of the Company and the members of the Board, a declaration of 
Compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them. 

 

 

By Order of the Board  

      Niraj Ispat Industries   Limited  

 

Sd/- 
Chaitanya Chaudhry  

    Director 
    DIN: 06813394      

Address: KD-46, Kavi Nagar, 

      Ghaziabad-201002, Uttar Pradesh     
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L'iDEPF.NDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To The Members of 
JIro"lRAJ ISPAT INDUSfRlRS LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of'hc Ind AS Financial Statcmenls 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statem~nl~ of Niraj [spat ItUStries 
Limited ("the Company"), which comprises thc Balance She~t as at March 31, 2 24. thc 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement f Cash 
Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and Note~ to the 
Financial Statem~nts ine[uding a summlll)' of significant accounting policies an~ other 
e:-;planatory infomlation (hercinaficr referred to ns the "financiul statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and a!Xording to the e:-;planations iven to 
us, the Ilforesaid Ind AS flmmcial statcmcnll; give the information required by the Co lPaoies 
ACt, 2013 (''the Act") in the munncr so required and give a true ond fair view in emiformity 
",ith the accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the SlaLe of affaint of 'he 
Company as at Mareh 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, IS cash 
Ilows and ehanges in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Balis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the lnd AS tinaneial stutements in accordance .... ith the 5 u!ards 
on Auditing (SAs), as specified andcr section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibi1iti~ ~"'" 
those Standards are r w1iK:r described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities lilr the Audi of 'he 
lnd AS Financial Statements' section or our report. We arc independent of the Com any in 
accordance ... ith the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institut~ of Chartered Accoun~ts of 
India together v,ith the ethical requirements that arc rele\'ant to our audit of the financial 
51atemenLS under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under. and wc have ~Ifilled 
our other elhical responsibilities in accordance with th~'Se requiremenl~ and the ICAI ~s Code 
ofEthlcs. We bdieve tha' the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approdriate to 
pro\ide a basis for our uudit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. I 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters lire those matter5 that, iD our profes.~ional judgment, were t most 
significance in our audit of the Ind AS financio.l statements lor the financial yell ended 
March 31, 2024. Th~'SC IIUlt\en; were addressed in the eome:-;t of our audit of thc nd AS , 
fiD3Dcial statements as a whole, and iIl forming our opinion thereon,:and we do not pro\ide a 
separate opiniOIl on tl1ese mnttcl1>. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that contelct. 
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matte to be 
communicated in our report. We have flI1filled the responsibilith:s described in the~uditor's 
rcspon~ibilities for the audit of the lnd AS financial slaMnents section of ou report. 
including in relation to these mauers. Accordingly, our audit included the perro ancc of 
procedures designed to respond to our assessment oflbe risks ofmaterio.l miss\atem of the 
Ind AS financial statemeots. The results of our audit procedures. including the p . educes 
pcrfm1l1ed to address tho: matters below. provide the hasis for our audit opinio on the 
accompanying Ind AS financial statements. I 

I. Property, Plant & Equipment and Capital Work in progun 

Valuation and existeoce of property, plant and equipment including iJSSeS5IJlCnt Of lISeful 
lives and Il;!sidual value. Property, plant and equipment represcnl~ a significant prop~' ion of 
the Company'S asset base. The estimates and assumptions made to do:tlmTli~ the arrying 
1Ill10unts. including whether and wlten to capitalize or e:-;pensc certain costs, d the 
determination of depreciation charges are materio.l to the Company's financial positIon and 
perfol1l1ance. The charges in respect of periodic depreciation are derived after estim ting an 
asset's c:-;pected useful life und tlK: e:-;peeted residual \·a1ue. Changcs to asset's Jarrying 
1Ill10unts, expected uscful lives or rc.sidual \·o.lue could result in a material impact on the 
financIal statements and hence considcred as key audit matter. 

HoW our audit addrfllsed the Key Audit Matter 

Onr audit procedures indudcd the following: 

Our audit approach consisted evo.luation of design and implementation of oontrdls, and 
testing the operating elTecti\'eness of thc interoo.l controls over valuation of propertj·, plant 
and equipment und review of useful lives; Periodic physical verifif;:ation of proper! . plant 
and equipment lor Qdequacy and appropriateness of the accounting and disclosull;! hy the 
Management: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

We oblaino:d an understanding of the Company's capitaii;t.lluon policy and a sesscd 
tor compliance with the rclcvtintaccounting standards; 

I 
We carried out substantive tc5ls on randum sampling for all the major ad' tion.~. 

deletions to the assets by applying all the characteristics of capital expcndirure, proper 
ciassificution of the same, v.ith reference to the company's policy and ace unting 
standards; 

We obtained an undcrstanding on management assessment relating to prog css of 
projects and their inlention to bring tbe IDIsd to il~ intended use. I 

We obtaincd ecrtifieato:s refating to useful lives ofassel~ where. required. 

InfOrmation Other than the Finan.,ial Statements lind Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible lor the other infol1l1ation. Th other 
information comprises thc infunnation included In the Annual repon. hut docs not inel' e the 
lnd AS financial statements and thereon. ! 
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Our opinion on the Ind AS t1nancio.l s1al~ments docs Dot cover the other information and we 
do not express nny fonn ofllssurnnee eonclu~ion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial stalernenls, our resporu;ibility i~ 10 read 
the olher infOrmlltion and, in doiog so, consider whetlu:r the other information is tn;I.terilllly 
ineonsislent with Ihe financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears 10 be materially misstated. Ir, based on the work we have performed. we oonclude 
!hat th~re is II material misstatement of this other information; 'we are required 10 re olt that 
fw:t. We haye nothing to report in this regard. ' 

Responsibility of '-fanagem",nl and Those Charged with Govemanc<,: for the d AS 
Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsihle for the matters staled in Section 1, 4(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") v,;\h respect to the preparation of these Ind AS ' aneial 
statements that give a true and fair view of th~ financial position. financial perf, nnane<: 
including other comprehensive income, cash nows and changes in thc equity of the C mpany 
in accordance with thc accounting principles gcner-dlly accepted in India, including th Indian 
Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified undcr Section 133 of the Act read 11th the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 S as amended. 

This respolISihility also includcs maintenance of adequate accounting records in ace?rdance 
with the provisions of the Act tor safeguarding the assets of the Company and for p~~'Tlting 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of apptopriale 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and Prud

t
' """ 

design, implementation and malnlenanee of adequate internal financial controls, til t " .. ere 
operating effectively for ensuring the accurac} and complet~ness of the accounting cords. 
relevanl\o the preparation and presentation of the ind AS financial statcments that giv\:: a \rue 
and fair view and an: free from material missratcment, whether due to fumd or error. I 

In pr~p!ll'ing the Ind AS financial stalemenl~. management is responsihle for IISses~ng \he 
Company's ability to continue as a going conCCTIl, disclosing, os applicable, malle,.,. related to 
¥oing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless mllIlllgemeni either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemativ4 hut to 
do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial rturting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities Fur The Auditufthe Ind AS Financial Statements I 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance !!bout whether the Irod AS r+ancial 
SUllements as a whole are frec rrom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or en:pr. and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes oor opinion. Reasouahle assur.mce is a high level of 
assurance, hut is nota guarantec that Wl uudit conducted in accordance with SAs will' lwuys 
deted a mftterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements OWl arise from fraud or e or and 
are COTlsidcrcd material if; individually or in the aggregaIe, they couid Teosunably be cx ecLed 
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to innuenee the economic decisions of users taken on the hasis of these lnd AS financial 
stalemenl!;. 

As part ofao audit in accordlUlce v.ith SAs. we excreise profcssionaljudgment and Jjt1alntain 
professional skepticism throughout thc aodit. We also: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS ~nancial 
statements. whethcr due \0 fmud or error, design and perform audit pr<jcedures 
responsive to those risks, and oblllin audit evidence that is sufficient and IIp~ropriale 
to proviooa basis for our opinion. n.e risk of not dejecting a material miss~tement 
resulting from fiaud is higher than for one resulting from emJr. as fmud may invol,'e 
collusion, forgery, in!~ntional omissions. misrepresentations, or the ove ride of 
internal control. 

Obtain ao underslarlding of internal control releV'dllt to the audit in ordcr tq design 
audit procedures IImt are approptiate in the cireumstances. Under section 143·pXi) of 
the Act, we are also responsihle for expressing our opinion on whether the Crmpan) 
has adequnte internal financial controls systl!ffi in place and the 0ICtllliOg 
effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the oppropriatcncss of accounting policies uscd and the reasonabl ness of 
accounting estimates und related disclosures made by managemcnt. 

Conclude on the appropriateness ofmaoagemcnt's usc of the going concern is of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtailled, whethcr a muterial uncertainty 
exisL~ related to evei'll!; or conditions that may cast significant doubt Ion the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conelude that a :raterial 
uncertainty exi:ils. we W'e required to dmw attention in our auditor's rcpo to the 
related disclosures in the linaneial sllltcmenL~ or, if such disclosures are lnadc~bte. to 
modify our opinion. Our coRClusJons are hased on the audit e\~dence obtaincll up to 
the date of our auditor's report. Howev~"T, futlUl: evcnts or conditions may c~se the 
Company to cease to continuo: us a going conco:m. I 

, 
Evaluate the overall presentation, 8lructorc and content of the Iud AS firinncial 
statemcnl!;. including the disclosllreS, and whcthCT tho: Ind AS financial Slaaements 
represent. the underlying transactions aod events in a manner that achie+s fair 
presentallon. 

We communicate with those chllfged Vrilh governance regarding, among othCT maLtjrs, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any sig ilicant 
defieiencies io internal control that we identify during our audiL I 

We also provide those charged wIth governance v.ith a statement that we have comPli,d ",ith 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with ~cm all 
relationsbips and other matters \.hat may reasonably be though! to bear on our indeperidl:l1ce, 
WId whcrc applicable, related safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated ",-jth those charged with govcrnance, we detcl1l1i,re those 

IlUIttet~ that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS fina.ndaJ statcment~' lor ~he 
financLD.l year ended March 31, 2024 and are thercfore the key audit matters. We' cscnbe , 
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation J)n:(:ludcs public dJ:;cIosure 

about the maller or when, in extremely rllre circumstances. we detel1l1ine that a matte should 
not be communicuted In our report OOCall.'<e the odvcrse consequences of doing , would 

reasonahly be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits ofsoeh emnmuniuti 

Report nn Other Legllind Regulatory Requirements 

1. As Rquircd by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") i 'ued by 

the Central Government of India in lel1l1S of sub-section (II ) of seetion 143 of, he Act, 
und on the basis of such cJuxks of the books and record of the Compan as v,.e 

considered appropriate nnd according to the infonnation and explanations gl\'~ to us, 
we give in 'Annexure A' a statement on the matters specified in parQgraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order. I 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the infonnation and explanations which to the best 
ofoor knowledge and beliefv.ere ncceSlillry for the purpose ofoot audit. 

h. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law havc been ke~ by the 
CompwlY so far as it appears from our examination ofthose books. 

c. The Bo.lancc Sheet, The Slalement of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income. the statement of Ca~h Flow and Slatem~nt of ChJ' ges in 
Equity dealt ",;Ih by this Report are in agreement with Ihe books ofaecounl, 

d_ In our opinion, the aforesaid Iod AS financial statem~nts comply with th9 Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. read with COjPanies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Roles, 2015, Illi amended. I 

e. On the basis of written repres~ntations rceeiv~d from !.he directors as on M~rch 31. 
2024. laken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is 
disqualified a<; on 31 It March, 2024. from being appointed as a Director in t s of 

Section 164 (2) ofth~ AeL 

r. With respect to the adequacy of the inlernal financial controls O\'cr fi 

reponing of the company and the operating effectiveness of soch controls. ~efer to 
our separate report in "AMcxur~ B"to this report. 
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g. With respect to the o!her matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
IICcordllllce with the requirements of section I 97(16} of !he Act. 115 amended. In our 

opinion and to the best of our information IIlId according 10 the explanations givo:n 

to us. the remuneration paid by !he Compan}' to its dircclOrs during !he year is in 

accordance ..... hh thc provisions of section 197 ofthc Act.; 

h. Wilh respecl to the olber matters to be included in the Auditor'S R¢port in 
W:COrdIlllCC with Rulc II or the Companies (Audit IIlId Auditors) Rules.20l4. as 

amended, in our opinion and 10 the best or our information IIlId accordmh to the 
explanations given to U5 : 

(I) The Company hru; disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its linuncial 
position in its Ind AS limmeiol Sllllements. 

(ii) The Company has made provision, as required under Ihe applicablol law or 

aecounting standards. for material foreseeahle losses. if any, on 10 g,tcnn 
contracts inclnding derivative contracts. 

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amount, required to be traI1Sfo rrcd, 10 

!he Investor Education and Prolection Fund hy!he Company 

(iv) (aJ The MaTUlgemcnl has represented that, 10 tbe best of it's knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements, no fund.~ hare been 

advanced or 10lllled or invested (either from borrowed funds or share pimium 
or any othcr sources or kind or funds) by Ibe CumpllllY to or in an u!her 
pcrson(s) or entity(ies), including fureign enlities ("lntennediaries"J, ·th the 

understanding, whethllT recorded in writing or othernise, that the Inte~1 ediary 

shall, dil'l:Clly or indirectly lend or invest in othcr pclliOns or entities id ntificd 
in lilly manner whatsoevcr by or on behalf of !he ComplIlIY (" Illimate 
Beneficiaries'') or provide lilly guarantee. security or the like on behnlf of tile 

Ultimatc Beneficiaries. j 
(b) The ManagemCllt has represented. thai, to the best of it's knowle ge and 
belief, lIS disclosed in Note 34 10 the financial statements. no funds hnye been 

received by the Company from lilly pel'!;()n(s) or entity(ies}, inCluding oreign 

entities ("FundIng Panies"), with the understanding., whe!her Teeo ed in 
writing or o!herwise. that !he Compuny shall, directly or indirectly. end or 

invest in o!her pl'TSURS or entities identified in lilly manner whalSOeve

r 
b)' or 

on hehulf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") Or provi e any 
gUlll1lIltee, security or the like on beholf of the Ultimute Bencficiaries. 
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(e) B;ascd on the audi t prucedurn pufo!1l1ed 11141 have bc:en CQllsido:n:d 

rell.'iOnabh: and appropriate in the circ\IIl1stances. nothing has l:un1e 10 our 
noli ce thai has cUUKd us 10 believe thai the representulions under suh.claUSl: 

(i) and (ii) of Rule I l(e), as prtwickd under (0) UIId (Il} ahove. o:onlain any 
I1UIterilll mim;llcmmt. 

(v) B"5nI on our uamm..lion, which included 1",,1 checks. the COfllpilny h<,s lL..eU 
accounting ,onuur.:: for mainlalning it., txx)ks of account for thc fiflund:al )~nr ended 
31 " :March 2U24 which did nUl hIlS . fC'.llure of recording ~udil trail (edit 1011) facilily 
and lIle 9IlIOO "'as 001 op:r .. ted Ihrougbout the year for all relevant tnLfWIClions 
re«>«bI in the !iI.~uDling wf'twllll:. 
As provi.~. 10 Rule 3(1) of ~ Companies (AL'I;(,unlsj Rulo,'$, 2014 is applK:~hle from 

0'" April 2023. reportinll under Rule 11 (&) of lbe Companies (Audil and Aud ilol"5) 
Rules. 2014 on llreserv~lion of aooil Imil as per I~ slalulo1)' I\:quin:lTK'nl~ I\.t r"",,oro 
lelenl)clll is nOl IlfOPlicablc fot tile finllnCi.a1 yeu end..'C1 3 1" Ma.rc:h 2024. 

Place: Oh.:u:ial:>;.d 
Date : 2~" M.y 2024 

For SANJEEY ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartcml Aced.untanlS 

Firm Rq. No. 00717)C 
I 

C-~~.w.-
(Sumi! ~upla) 

Pann~r 

M.NO.;mn 
UUIN 2.w2J4SJDIWX~OI610 
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENTAJmITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to paragraph 2(f) umkr 'Report on Other LegaI and Regulatory Rcqui~ements' 
section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Finaneial Control Over Finaneial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 o(SeetioD 143 o(the Companil'!l act, 2013 ('the Act') 

We huve auditcd tbe internal linancial controls over financial reponing of Niru} !spat 
lndu.~tries Limited ("the Company") 35 on March 31, 2024 in conjunction v;ith our ~udit of 
the Ind AS financial statements of the company fur the )'eaTernlcd on that date. 

Management's Re5ponsihIUty ror Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing amI maintaining !intemal 
financial controls based on the internal controls ovcr tinuncial reponing criteria c~t blisbcd 
by the company considering essential components of internal control stated in the <fuidance 
NOie on Audit of Internal Financinl Controls over }'inancial Reponing issoed by the . nstitute 
of Chartered Accoontants of India (the 'Goidance Note'). These responsibilities inc ode the 
design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls I were 
opemting effectively for ensuring the orded)' and efficient conduct of its business.' lndiog 
adhcrenct! to company's policies, the safeguarding of its asset. the prevention and dftel.!tion 
of rmuds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and th~ timely 
preparation of the reliable financial information, us required under (he Companie!; Aetj2013. 

ADditor's Respon.~ibility 

Our responsibility is to e:.;press WI opinion on the Company's internal financial conlnfl~ over 
financial reporting with rererence to these finaneinl statements based on our audit. We 
conduC1~>d our audit in accordance .... ith the Guic.1ance Note on Audit of Internal Fipancial 
Controls Over Hnancial Reponing (the "Guld:mc~ Note") and the SUUldard!; on AudIting as 
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicablb to an 
audit of internal financial controls and, both issucd by the Institute ofChan~red ACC1"""" 
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and pcrfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about ,hctber 
adequat~ internal financial controls over fmandul reporting with reference to these fihancial 
stat~'IlIent~ was estabHslK:d and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. I 

Our audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain aadit evidence about the adcq""d of the 
internal financinl control systcm over financial reporting and their operating efTeetireness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over finuncial reporting included obtni~'ng an 
understandiog of intcrnal financial controls over financial reporting. assessing the ri~ thai a 
material wcakne.;~ exists. and testing Wid evalouting the de:;ign Wid opemting effective' ess of 
intelTllll control basoru on the a~se5sed risk. The proccdures !!elected dcpend on the fI ditor's 
judgm~nt, including tbe assessment of the risks of materiul misstatement of the fi ial 
~1aIements, .... iJethcr due to fraud or error. I 
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We beli~ve that the audit e"idencc"1: have oblai",,-d is suffK:icnt and IIppropriate to j ro"ide a 
b is rOT ouraudit opinion on the Cornpan~" 5 inlcRUlI financial controls S}"Sk'm 0"« financial 
reportin!:, 

Mranin& oflnt~rn,,1 Fin.neilll Controlll O,..:r Fin.nrilll Rcportiol: 
A comp:my' s intrmal fiJ\l\nciai control OVCT financiD.1 reponing with rdCltlite 10 lhese 
linancial stalCmCnl~ i~ II proce5'f designed 10 provide to:asonablc _1ltlIIK:o! n:prding lhc: 
n:liability or linano;ial reponing and the prq=al;on or fUlllll<:ia1 IOIalemcnts fot .,,,Iema] 
purpose, in accoroll!1CC with generally acccpted a<:C.,wllinll principJo:_, A companY'~l inlemal 
financial eonlrol ovct financ iol rcponlnl! with rdcI"CI'K:c 10 thct-;c lillllndol statements Includes 
those p.,licics !IDd p«ocedurcs Illat (1) pertain to tM mainlcIlQJK:c of !'eCord! 'that. in 
reasonable dctail. acl.-umlc\y and r"iTI), reflect the IM!.n$3CIion.~ IUld disposilil)ll5 of tif 1ISSO."l!i 

o fthe COmpany: (2) pro"ide fCII5OII3t>l", lISSUI'3I\CC thol lrIlM:Jctiuns we to:CQnIed as nteCS5:lry 
UI p"mlit pn:poralion of filWlC'ilil ,Ul!a11Cl'Its in lICCOrdan~c "ilh gcner.ln~ IcCO:pl:C!J 
accounling principles, and that =~ipt5 and e,xpendilUteS of the ~omp3llY are ht:ing m&ktc only 
in IICcotdance with uuthorisalions of management und din."Clol'll of II!<; comp.:my: 11100 (3) 
pl'llvidc rca.",-mabk It$$ur.mce re~aNing pl'Cvcnlion 0' timely de4cction of unauthorised 
ucqui,ition. U!iC. or disposition of the company's a.~-;el S thai could .... '-c a material en'ect on 

the financial Slalemtnts, I 
Inbercnl Limlt.tion.' or Intern.1 FinlUlcial Cuntrob over Fin.nd.1 Reporlirll 
Because of lbe inherent I imilalioru (If internal linancinl controls o"~r financial repof\lJ\lI "'ith 
n:fcren~ 10 Iht:sc fill3l'11:i,,1 sllllcmerll.~, ineludins lhe pntSSibi lil)' 01 ro1Iusioo or improper 
managcm""'lon"lTide "r .:olurols. m:ncnnl nli lo.'\I.at\mcnlS due w CTl\lf or tmud lnUy OIXur and 
nol be dCIa:ted. Also, pmjeetions of iIl1Y evalualion of lhe intcrnal tinam:iLl cormOll O\'et , 
fmanc:iul reponing wilh lI~ferencc to these financial statements 10 future periods are ~ubject to 
lhe risk that the inlelTl:lI financial conlm] over finan cial n:poninltl with reference ~, these 
Iin:Lllcial statemcnlJ fTlII)' become in:ldt(junl~ b.,-'; IIIl.'I< of changcs in conditions. lIT ih&l the 
degree of compIianr:e with the polir;icsClt pmr:ftturn~' det<!liol'1ik, 

Opinion I 
In our opinion. to t lte besl of OUt informulion and accurdinltl to the explanalion~ 1I1"en 10 1L~. 
the Co,mpnny hos, in oJl material respc<:t!.. an adequale internal financial conlrol~ S)'SI.lm O\TT 
fillllrleiel reporting and soch interna l finano;iw controls ovn financ ial reponin, we re 
opcr:lIinltl clTo:etivcl}' as at ~1U'C!l 3 1. 2024, ba.~ on the internal ct\nlrol owt rmancial 
n:pOT1in.: erilerill. cWlbli~hc:d by Ihe Cnmpony considering lhe cs5<.>ntinl components of 
intem.ll eontrol stated in the Guidan~e N<;>tc issued hy the IIL,timlc nf Cb3n~rcd A~eountanls 
(If1ndia, 

ODIC : ~9'" MI) 20~4 

Fot SANJIiliV ANA~D& ASSOCIATES 
Chartered AceounUlOlS 

Finn R~g, N(>, OQ7 171 C 

~'-1.J,.. 
(SwlIit <;i upIa) 

i>i\rttl<:r 
M~"O, J~14SJ 

unl}; 244234S3BKn:;;[OI610 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph I under 'Repon on Other Legal and Requirement' section of our 
report of even date) 

To thc best of OUT information and according to the cxpanntions provided to us by the 
Company and the books of account and records examined by US in thc nonnai C{>urse of 
audit, we state that; 

1. (a) The company ha.~ maintained proper records showing fun partieulan;. induding 
qnantilative details IUld siruatiun of properly. plWlt & equipment. capital work-in­
progres~. 

(b) The Company has a regular programme for physical verification in phased periodie 
mlUlIler. which, in our opinion is reasonabie having n:gard to thc size of the compWly 
lind the nature of its Ilssets. According to the infonnation and explanations given to us, 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to tbe information and explanations given to us and the record drunined 
by us and based on the examination of registered sales deed! conveyanc~ deed f 
transfcr deed provided 10 us, \Ve report that the litle deeds, comprising.! all the 
immo\'ilblc property uf1and and acquired building whicb are frcehold, arc helti in the 
nume ofthe Company liS at the balarn::c sheel. 

<d, The Compan} bas not re\uh..,d any of iL~ propeny, plant and equipment d1'ng !he 
year, 

(e) No proceedings have been initi ... ted during !be yeur or are pending ugu\Ilst the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 for bolding any benami propert} under the Benam; 
Transactions (Prohibition) Ael. 1988 (liS amcrnled in 2016) and rule made 
thereunder. 

2. (a) As explllined to us. the inventories ..... ere physically verified during the yellr by the 
Management lit reasonable intervals except for inventories lying with third parties 
where oonfirmations have been received by thc I11BlL!Igcment. La our opinion 1Ill~ based 
on information and explanations given 10 us. the coverage and procedure ~f such 
verification by the Management is approprillle having regard to the size lof tbe 
Company and !he nature of ilS opemtions. No discreplUleies of 10% or more in tbe 
aggregate for each class of illYcntorics were noticed 00 sueb physical verilie~illn of 
inventories f lIHematc procedures perfonned as lIpplicable, when compared '-'11th the 
books of account. 
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(b) The Company has been sanctioned .... "Orking capilal limits from banks and financial 
institutions on the basis of 5eturity of current assets. In our opinion and according to 
the infonnution and cxpllllUltions given to us, the quarterly returns or statements 
comprising stock and book debt statements, filed by the Company with sueh bJmks are 
in agreemcnt with the unaudited books of IICCOunt of the Company of the re~pccth'e 
qWlrters. 

3. According to the infonnation and explanations given to us, the company has not ll;-adc any 
investment in, provided WIy guarantee or 5eturity or granted any 10lllls or advanoc in the 
natun: OrloaM, s~ured or unsecured to companies, fmns, limited liability panne 'hips or 
any other parties covered in the register maintained under secLion 189 of the AcL I 

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the c mpany 
has complied with the provisiom of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of~t of 
loans, making investments and providing guamntees und sccurities, as applicable. j 

! 5. The company hElS notllCcepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 6 of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Aceo ingly, 
the provisions of clause 3 (v) of the order an: not applicable to the Company. 

6. As cxplailled to us, the Centm! Government of India has not specified the main! 1IlI<;l: (If 
• cost records under sub section (i) (If section 148 of the Act for any pmdu of the 

Company. Therefore the provisions of clalL'>C 3(vi) of the order are not applicable. 

7. According 10 the intormation and cxpl!U1ations givcn t(l ll~, in respect of statutory dt" 

(n The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statuto dues 
including provident fund, employees' state insurance, Ineome lUX, goods and Iservicc 
tax, duty of Cu..lOms, cess and IIny other material Sllltutory dues applicahle to it \\ilh 
IIppropriate authorities. I 

(ii) There are no undisputed amounts payable in re~peel (lfprovidcnt fund, employe<:ls' stalc 
insurance, Income tax, goods WId service tax, duty of customs, cess and any other 
material statutory dnes in arrears as at 31st March. 2024 for a )X:riod of more SIX 

months from the dille they became pa}'able. 

8. There were no tmnsacIwns relating to previously unrecorded income thilt v>-ere IOU ,ndered 
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Ta.~ AcL 1961 (43 of 
1961) during the year. 

9. (a) fn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to , the 
company has not defaulted in repayrnlmt of loans or borrowings to the banks lind Ii ancial 
institutions. 

(b) The Company has nOl been declared will'ul defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority_ 
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(e) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, lerm loans availed b}' the 
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the pnrposes for ""ilich the 
loans were obtained 

(d) On an ovemll cxamination of the finaneial statements of the CompWly. funds raised on 
short-term basis have, prima fileie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes 
by the Company, 

(e) On an overall examination of the fillllllCial slaterneOls orthe Company, the Cumpany 
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the ob l!!a1ions 
of its subsidiari~s, an osliodille or ajoint venture 

(I) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge ofsceurilies h' ld in ils 
subsidiaries or joint \'enlures or associate companies. 

10. (a) Tbe Company has not raised money by \'iay of initial publie offer or forth 
oner (ineluding debt instruments) during the yl'llf" and hence reponing unde 
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable 

(b) The Company ha.~ not made private placement of share~ during the year an 
reponing wtder elouse 3(x)(b) oflbe Order is not applicable, 

public 
clause 

II (a) According to the information and explWllltions gi\'en to us, no material fmu by the 
eompany or on the company by its offieers or employees has been notieed or reported 
during the eourse orour aOOi!. 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under snb-section (12) of section 14~ of the 
Companies Aet ha~ been filed in Form ADT 4as prescribed under rule J3 ofC0'fpllllles 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. during the yl'llf" ~d UplO 
the date of this repon. 

(e) As Audilor, we did not receive any whislle,blower complaint during the year, 

12, In our opinion, the Company is nOI a uidhi company, Thcrefore, the provisions 01 clause 
)(xii) orlbe order are not applicable 

13. Aecording to the infonnation and explanations given to Wi, the transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the CompWlies Adt 2013 
where applicable Wid dctails have been disclosed in the notes to the stWidalone Ii~cial 
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurule with 
the Si7.t' and the nature of It~ bll..iness 

(b) We ha\'e con.~idered, the internal audit reports issued to the Comp3ny during the year 
and eoverin1l the period upto March 2024. 
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IS. Aceofdi~ the information and clCpJanali<m given 10 Wi. 100 cump:1l\Y has not entered into 
4IIy non-cash tr.LII.~iOfl \\o;th the diTCC1Ol'" or pcn:om connox:kd \li th his as n::ferred tu in 
5«lioo 192 oflile Compac.ies Act. 20 11. 

16. (a) In our opinion. the Company i~ nul required to be registe~ under sectiun 4S-IA of 
the: Reserve Bank or India Act.. 1934 
(b) l"hc CompM)' ba:; nol conduc ted any Non· Runking fiflllll(iul or HOWi inW FillMCc 
IICt;vilie>< during the )-.:af 

(c) 01 he CompiUly i$ nul II Con: In ~c5\JTJCnl Ccmpany (CiC) as Ikfined in the regulalioos 
made hy Rl'Scn'c Bank oflndia 
(d) As pef Ihc infonnution and ~lCptllnl\tion fccci~ed . the KfUUP does not nu,"c ~ny CIC lIS 
p;I" oflho: group. 

17. 11M: Company h;llj not inctllTed c1I5h losses durin; w fiRilJ1Chd )"C:If C(I\~~ b)' our audit 
and the immooiultly preceding finlllle;ai year 

190 On the basis o f the financial r.,lios. agciog and expected dntcs of realization of fi nancial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities. olher information lICoompan)ing the financial 
SiBlements and our knowledge of the Boon:! of l.)i,..""IOI"$ IUld MllruJl:!ement plans :lIId 
b;!scd on uur cxunlination 0]" the evidencc supporting Ihc 1I.5sumptions, nDlhing has cornc , 
10 our auention. which cnuses us 10 belic\'c that 4IIy makriai WlCt."Ctainty exisls Il! nn the 
date o r the OIUdil report indicating Ihat Company is taol capabk or mcetiJil ilS li.bilities 
c.'(istin~ allhc dlllc of balance sheel:U IIIId .. 1len th<.~· (all duc witbin II period ef one yt:3C 
]"rom tbe balunc~ sheet date . We, tv.)",~\Oer. ~at~ IMt this is not an il.\!;uroncc a. to the 
!i.nufC I'iability of the Cumpany. w~ rurther statc thaI our rcporl ing is based on ti't(' f:lCl\ 
up to the dale oftlie audit repon and we neither give 4IIy guaranI« nor any a5Surnnc~ thul 
all li tlbilitits fllHil\ll due within a period of ~ )"C3t from the Nlance shttll1lt~ . ~1 1l Cd 
di~hatgc:d by the Company as aod when \bey fili i duo:". 

20. Thefe is 001 liability of the cOl11fl11ny under tm, prevision uJ' ~tion 13S orlhe C.tII~panics 
Aet. felating to C\)l"f)Ilrnte Soeipi Responsibility. 111crefore the !'"ro\'hion ofChu. .. ~ (xx) of 
p:1r"lVllph 3 of the order arc 001 applicable to Ih~ Compan)"o 

2 1. The Compiln)' Ims not made ilwestmcnlll in subsidial)' Cm11ptU1)". Therefore. the e~pMy 
docs not require 10 p .. :pate comolidnlcd financi lll !IL8lcmcnt. l~fnrc. the provisions of 
Cl:iu$e (xxi) ofparograph 3 of the nrdcf arc not applicable to the Company. 

I'()I" SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATt::S 
Chanem:l Accout:1IIDl.S 

Firm RL-g. r\o. 00717 1C 

~~,1-
(Sumil qup.a) 
,~ 

.\I.NO.42HD 
UDtN 24423453RKR)lN01610 
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lKIulpment 

Other rlO r>-Cllrreril aI>SGts 
To,,'- Non 0;: \1""" n uts 
(21 C ytf!!l' ItHIf. 

Invenlorftl~ 

Financial Assets 
Traer. fKeionbles 
C.~ Ind cash lMluiv8len,. 
Other bllla~ ..... kh bank. 

Other a m a.11 assets 

ToUl" CIIfT.nt ...... 

TOTAL · ASSETS 

Ii:\;jUlD: .!.tI !O! l.'AII'!.Ws§ 
(3) Equity 

Eqo.Iity-share capital 
01he< IKIIiIty 

TotaI- Equity 
141 ~I!tnlll ot.jlitl!! 

Financial WabiliIiH - g. 
Puwisioou 
o..~ \aX fiabiilies {netJ 

ToLII', Non CUt..,,! n.bllltiH 
(!II e U,._! 1I.b!IIti", 

Fnandal liatMltin 
8om>wmg, 
Trade Ply,b\es 

F'fOYi.\ion' 
Other culfem. liabilities 

ToU'· Cun.nl ll~bjlitl •• 

~~~~~;~~~,~ale allllChBd ~ & ASSOCIATI!S 
e~_ 

Dated: 29.05.2024 

Form Aeg n No. OO7f71C 

5~·{>),.. 
(Sumll Gupta) 

CO, 
M,No 42)153 

un .... ")'w'>1" S"l ~II.Q"'; I4 ... \ j \ 0 

, 
, , 

• 
• , 
1 

, 
9 

OD 

" 

" 13 

" " 

SAHJEEV ANAHD & ASSOCIATES 

CI'IIrfIoted Jl.e<owol .... bi 

' .8.21 

211.<18 2Vll 

" " " .. ,.,. 1.75 

1.208.SI 

60" 60.00 I 
1.236.99 1,1,55.97 

132.65 132.10 

".., 16.93 

6.43 
iEI.73 
10.28 

, 
For & ON BEHALF OF BOARD 
Fill' Nl R.AJ ISPAT INOUSTBIES l TD. 

GIN: l21l0ll0lIiMSPlC02'8' , 

Ll~ 
(V1IWIaIi Ckludtuy) 

OI.6C\<lr 
O/n01719640 

(~·t,;u.;,rt • 
em 
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• 

NIW 'SPAT ""OmBIeS l!I!UEP 

I 8_u.'""" O". ... tIon. 
" OI/'i" 'ncome 
rn TOUIllncom. 
IVelrlMnu. 

(~) Cost of raw IrUI!IIRaIs COftIumed 
{til Chsnges ... _tnriet of finillhed Goods. 

-.Ie-in-progress and SIOCk-in-trtId. 
(c) Employ .. a-~. Elrpe-nus 
(II) Finanat C<aI 
(e) Oeprecialion & Amoolii .inn Expenses 
(I) Othef ElCpO!nses 
TOlll' upon ... 

V Profit befo .. e~~11tam & tu (ID • IV> 
VI E..cepUon.11tIma 
1111 Proflt/(to .. ) befo .. llIx (V-VI) 
VIII TU Expenns 
IllCOmfI till! for ,,"Wlus year 
CUlfent Tn 
Defllft&d TaK 

IX Profittorthe y ..... (VU-Vlllj 

X OIlMtComp""tln"v.ln~olM fOT ti;>e.lMrfod 
A (I) lIems that win no! be recI;oo.slfl&d to proM or 1081 

(IJ IfICDIloe "'" relating to itoms that will not be reeIMsified 
to prof~ or loss 

B iI) 1\...,5 1l1a1 wi" be recIullf1id to PfOrrt or loss 
(W) lncorno tu rellUng In I"ms that wlil be reclassified 

III profIt or loss 
T olal Othe, COmprebHnl"'" Inc;o,... 

Xl Tot.! CompnhMlnlncc .... for the yu, 
XII EIom'"gs 1M' I h ... 

8isle: BOO Diluted 

""""'"' --­,jnn ReQn. N~. 007HIC 

9-:£T"-
(Swn~ GUl'lIIJ 

FCA 
M.No. 423-453 

UI'l7-"''l"" '-'l"Sl /1,l< g )< \,,0\ l \ ~ 

SA.NJffV ANAND &ASSOCIATES 
Chlrt..-d .A.c:c:o.J'Unt. I 

" " 
" 
" " " , 
" 

1.8 1 
28,111 

13 ,51) 

272.9\ 

3.'" 
31,41 

1.25 
18.81 

"'.n 

0.22 
56."8 
(0.73)1 

"" 
For & ON BEHALF OF aOARD 
for NtlV.J ISPA11NOUSTRIeS LTD. 

CIM: L27106QLIt&5Pl.C(121111 

uo.'.J 
jVMh;!Ii Chaudllry) 

~­
OIn017196<10 

l.L. c. I • I~ 
(Nt,.j Chwdhry) 

<>'0 

l.\ L'-
(CIM!!..,. C~!vy) 

OIoecb ,f.cI CEO 
Din 0081339<1 , 
)~~" . ;; 
(~n lO\ltl) 

Com~SI '''''Iarf 
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• 

NIfW 'Sf AT INDUSTRIES! !!!T!!!O 

STATJiMeNT Of CHANGES IN eQulJY 
FOR THe yEAR ENDeD 31.t MARCH 2024 

A. Equity Share Captt.1 

.tMart:h,311023 
the year 

B. other Equity 

.... • tAptlI1, 2022 
Prof,1 fof tt.. ye81 
TransfBf wilhln equity 
Other COmprehensive Incom. 
lotio! CqrnpronBlv. Income 
·Flopl d ivid<!nd on eq~ity Shents 
·Tax an Anal dividend on equity Shares 

.... a' Mareh 31, 2023 

prom lor IhtI year 
T~~ wilhin QliIy 
O!hef C/:JrO'IcIfllhen!live Ineome 
Total CofoIpr8n,rve Income 
·Flnal dividend on equity ShBm 
• Tn 011 EN! dividerld on liquify Shl11l1 

AI. per our report 0( _n date Itlkl'lOtd 

Dated' 29.05.2024 

fOt SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Clwoteced AeC:Ountanb 

FInn ResllI, No. 001171 C 

c;;.......i'+'-
(SlImiI Gupta) 

FCA 
M.N<:>. 423453 

0.".,.1 
RIIIII"" 

153.S3 

-
15.00 

-
15.00 

-
-

lU.83 

-

' .00 
-

.00 
-

-

113.83 

, 
SAH,JEEV ANAND" ASSOCIATES 
C~.1\eI'1td A""",,"~nll 

R.-.. Totl! .... , • 
835,33 111.17 
168.eo llM!i.&l 
115.00) -
15t.eit 

-
181.80 

- -
- -• 

987.14 1,1S5.97 

111.02 81.02 
(5.00) -
- -

16.02 81,02 

- -
- -

1083.15 un,fIg 

For II ON BEHAU' OF BOARD 
for rmAJ tsPAT INlIUSTRIES lTtl. 

CIN: L21101501.llH15f'LC021 II , 

\lOw 
(VaI'hill C,"'.77'P~"~") 

Ol..eto. 
Din 01719640 
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SA.NJI!EV ANAND .. ASSOCIATES 
Clmtered A""O\Jntanl • 

C,ASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR !!NDEOllST MARCH. 2021 IRt. In! ,.hl 

o.ecialkw1 
F "",1ICIiI Cost 
(Profll)lloSi on Sale oflar¥ble AsMtI 
Otner Income from Inveslmenr, 
Prov, rorch..,ge In Falr value 01 Shares 
Operating ploIIt before WC1fUlg capital changu 

MiIllt'l'I!!!l1 lot ; 

Invenloiies 

Trade &. Othct Pay,bles 

~:':. !'_~ from opemlo,... 

NET CASH USEO IN INVESTIPofG ACTMTlES (8) 
CASI1 FLOW fROM FINANC.NG .... CTMT'E8 
Proceeds lrom Un&ecured loIins 
PIOCHd!I from borrowing Irom working CllpUl 
Proce: Js!rom !)t,j'OMrlg from~ loans 
tnaoose l(De<:tease) kl 'lMIaIM:nls 
Interest paid 
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTMTlES (e) 
Net change in eDaJ1 and CIIlh tquivalenls 
Cash and caM &quivalenls lIS.t lal April 
Cash and @$I! eguiY!lents 8181 3 t s1 Marm 

No!t:-

ll !03.Z02~ 

110.20 

16.70 
1.05 
0." 

(61.29) 
(0 .83) ... " 

(00.91) 
(5,97) 

(30.51) 
(67.03) 
(28.'l7J 

(1.61) 

• 

(87.81) 

(0.19) 

". 8 1.28 
62.35 

0.55 •. " 
(1.05) 
4,65 

(0.41) 
1.75 .. ,. 

31,03'2023 

222.77 

16.81 
1.25 

(69.17) 
(1.27) 

170.38 

(10001.70) 
VI6 

(54.75) 
(16.&1) 
(!i6.~) 

(0.22) 
(73.31) 

(0 .... 1 ) 

89.17 
68.78 

(5.21) 
8.09 

(1.25) 
(0.37) 
(4.92) 
6.67 
1.75 

1. The above C.sll flow statement hal been ~r&p8red unde11i1a 'ndiect Method" II sl'!! <>\It in Ind A5-7 
2. Figurel in bt~okl'!! indicata Ca&h Outflow 

Fa. &. ON BEHAlF Of BOARD 
For NI~ ISPATl/«lUSTRlES Lm . 

eIN ' t.27106DL1Q8SPLCC21111 

l\).k\. 
~ChaU<lWyl 

~andCEO 
Din 068133904 

%.J!",-,"-
(ShMI-..ri<Mn) 

Company $ech'boy 
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NlRAJ 'SPAT INDUSTRIES UMtTED 

, 
SANJEEV ANAND & AS~OCIATES 
C~d AccQunlontll 

riOJES Q~ FINANCIAl SIATEMEm FORJHE '(CAR ENQ'SP31" MABCli 2024 (fU, In! ,kltl 

Pllrticur .. ~ 

2. NON CURRENT ItNESTMENI 

fll Quottd Shat!! 
Aggrigate Value of IllVfttment 
Lllss; Provo for fair vahle 

Tot.lla) 

(bl Quoted Debenture & Bonds 
Aggligate Value of Investment 
LeBs: Prov. forfalr value 

Total (b) 

Ie) UngYoted ShI'" 
Aggrlgate Value of Investment 
Less: Prov, lor fair value 

Total I.:) 

Aggregate amounl of quoted Investment (III Cost) 
Aggregate amount ofUnQuoied Investment 
(at COsI) 

Aggregal&amounl of Quoted Investment 
(at FalrValue) 
Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment 
(al FalrValue) 

3. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL, 

4. INyENTORIES 

I 

(As laken, wlued and certffied b!f the management) 
(AII<>wer of cost and net realizable value unlllll slated clrn.r..;ae) 

Raw Malerials 
Finished & Semi_finished GoodS 
Stores, Sparl!S & Packing Mall!nals 

TOTAL: 

Ao ., 
31.03.2()24 

0,15 
0.15 

0.11 
0.11 

• 

2,00 
(23,30) 

25.211 

027 
'.00 

2.26 

25.29 

26.29 

, ... 

19.07 
7.69 
1.71 

, .... 
• 

0.15 
0.15 

• 

0.11 
0.11 

'.00 
(22.47) 

24.46 

0.27 
2,00 

2.28 

24.'16 

24.46 

8.05 

8.05 

11.47 
9.56 
1.46 

22,51 

Page 76



NIRAJ !SPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & As40CIATES 
Chartered AccounlanlS 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE 'fEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024 

Particulars 
..... 

31.03.2024 

, 

IA"ft 31.03.2023 

. 5. TRADE mEIVASI ES 

•• 

Unseo;ured and Consldar&d good 38,95 74.48 

38.95 74.46 

Before accepting any new customer. the Company USGS an eldernal credit scoring system to ess~Bs the potential 
oustomer's credit quality and defines cred~ IImlll by customer, Um~s and IICOring Bltribuled to: culltomers are 
reviewed Q(lce a year. 

The Compan!f does not hold eny COllateral or other credit enhanc:emenla over Ihese balances nof does it hava a 
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the (:ounterparty. I 

Trade I"8(:8lvables hypothecated as security against borrowings. 

In deletminlng the racovarabllltY of a trade receivable. the Company consldel'$ any change In Ihe Credit quality of 
!he trade·recelvable from the dale credit Will Initially granled up to the end of the reportl~g period. The 
conc:enlJalion of (:red~ risk Is llmited due to !he faGt thai the (:ustomer base Is large and unrelal&d, I 

CAS!;! !HI;! !;lMH Eg!.!I~l.lilfi 
Cash In hand 0.62 0.38 
SalsOC?? with banks 

In (:urrenl and deposit accounts 0.72 1.37 

TOTAL: .... 1.75 

7. OTHER CURRENT ASSIiTS 
(Unseaned. (:onsldered good unless stated oIherwe) 
Advarn::es recoverable In cesh or in kind Of 

for value to be received 
Other loallS and advances; 
Prepaid Expenses 
Baiances 9vith statutory I govemment authorities 

TOTAL: 

1,308.57 

0.52 
0.91 

1,310.00 

• 

1,208.48 

1.19 
0.84 

1,208.51 
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NIRAJ tsPAT INDUSTRIES LIIIRTEO 

SANJEEV ANANb & ASSOCIATeS 
Chartered~ntants 

I 

NOTES ON F(NANCIAL STATEMENT FOBJHE 'fEAR £mOE? 3111 MMCHW4 IRI, In b,khl 

. Particulars 
~--------------

.~;. of R$,101-e8(:h (Plevious year 

.:': of Rs,10i-each) 
! ! 

:·.O:O~;;; i~;;i;; "",''''" (Previous year 
~, Shares of Rs.10l-ead1) 

'''::: of Rs.101-each (Previous YHr 
·hl of Rs.1DJ..fIach) 

TOTAL: 

60.001 

60.00 I 

I 
SO.GO I 

I 

60.00 

60,00 

BO.OO 

60.00 

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each shareholdef 'S eUgibie for ons voto perlshare held. The 
dlvldo:md. if proposed by Ihe Board cf Directors Is subject to the <lpprov.1 of the shareholders In ~n3ulng genem! 
meeting. 

o tall of h h 1111 h Idbvth • • I 1[1; !it 09 • 
t<lame of the share holder 

Sml. Madbu Chaudhary 
Sh. Nlraj Chaudhry 
8h. N_J Chauc!hary (HUFl 
8mt. Vaishllil Chaudhry 
Smt. Anuradha Kanodia 
Ms. Vaidehi Chaudhry 
MIl Pickup $uppIl8n1 (P) Ltc!. 
Haryanl Stainless Staal LLP 
NlraJ Steel LLP 

149,600 
504.300 
53,900 
47,900 
61.600 
30,400 

• 

149,600 
54,300 
53.900 
47,900 
61,600 
30.400 

II IU21D , gill!!! mo. , BlYR: 

As on 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023 
No. 01 % Held 
shares 

No. of she res % Hald 

149.600 24.93% 149,600 24.93% 
51,8M 10.27% 61,6M 10.27% 
.. .300 9.05% 54,300 9.05% 
30.400 5.07% 30,400 5.07% 
20.000 3.33% 20,000 3.33% 

"00 0.87% 5,200 0.87% 

53.'" 8.98% 53,900 8.98% 
47.900 7.98% 47,900 7.98% 
24,600 4.10% 24.800 4.10% 

% change 
clun"" the year 

-
· 
-
-
-

· 
· 
-

-
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NFRAJ \SPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

5ANJEEV ANAND & ~OCIATES 
Chilrtered Accounlilntl 

~QI5§; Q~ EINAN!::~L §;I6II;:MI;:~I t.QB T!::II;: ~EAR I;:ti~l;:C: ;UIl M8BQI::! Z~4 {Bji. ID IdI!N 
, 

"''' 
, 

Partlculano AIIlat 31.03.2023 
31.03.202' 

9. OTHER EQUITY 
General Reserve 
Retained Earnings 

173.83 
1.063.15 

168.63 
1181.14 

" 
TOTAL: . 1,236.99 1.155.97 

Indian Companies Act 1956. a general reserve was crealed through an ennu~ transfer cf nat 

Income al a specified percenlage In ElGCOfdance with ElPl'licable "'!JulatIons. The purpose of these transfers was , 
to ensure thai If a alVidenci distribution In a given year Is mora than 10% of tha pald-up capital of lIle COfIlpany for , 
that year. then tha total dlvlclend distribution Ie leu then the totel distribulebla raBuk, for that year.!, 

Consequent to Introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mendatory transfe~ of a specified 
percentage of tha net prefit to general reserve has been wlthdrewn end the Company can optlonrlfy transfer Elny 
emount from the 8IJrplu, of profit or lou BCCOIIni to the Ganaral l8&arveS. 

(ii) Ragjned Eaml!!!!! 
Retained earnings ara the prollls that the company has earned IlII date /es, any tran,fer to gen&f81 reserve. 
divldand, or other distribution paid to shElreholdera. ' 

10. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

Un.!!Curtd Loan. 
From Related Parties 
From BodyoCorp<xate & othen! 

Net Amount 
• 

TOTAL: 

• 

Deferred IaIt bIIlanc. In ... Iallen to 

Property. plant and eq.IIpment 

Tobit 

Defarrad IaIt bIIlance In relation to 

T .... 

All a131., 
March 2023 

16.93 

17.6& 

, 

132.65 

132.65 

15.53 

15.53 

Recognl.ed I 
r~alHd through 

POL 
(1.39) 

(U.'ffi 

132.10 

132.10 

16.93 
, 
I 16.93 
I 

All ~t31., March 
• 2024 , 

I 15.53 

16.93 
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NIU! !SPAT INDUSTRIES LIiiiTEO 

, 
SAHJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES , 
ChlJtered ACCOIRanl. 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31s! MARCH 2024 IB!: In bal5hl 
I 

Particulars Aut 
31.03.2024 As. ~t 31.03.2023 

, 
12. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS 

SMUM working capital LO'M; 

BankoflndiB 11.79 6.43 

NetAmounl 11.79 '.43 , 
Working cap~al limits are secured by flrat charge on the enUre current 1880tS of Iha IXlmpany ln~udlng stocks of 
raw material. wGl'k-ln-progresS, finished good., book-debis both present & future. Working ",Pllal limits are 
further secured by way of equitable mortgage af Immowable propally oltha company al 0.-10, B,S'IROiOd Industrial 
AraB, Ghazlabad sud personal guarantee of tho directors of the company • 

• • 
13. TRADE PAYABLE 

1<. 

Dues of micro and small enterprises 
Sundry Creditors 

TOTAL: 

3.24 
70.91 

74.15 
, 

1.06 
95.66 

,.." 

ArnauDI dUB to mla'o and small entel'pli_ as defined In the "The Micro, Small and Medl~m Enlerp~se8 
• 

Development Acl, 2006" hss been datermlned to the extent sach partfea have baarl Identified on IIle basis of 
fnformatioiJ available with the Company. The disclosures relating to micro and sman enterprises Is +s below: 

(I) Principal amount remaining unpaid 10 supplier at the end of the yqr 
(II) Interest due I accruea' thereon remelnlng unpaid to supplier at the 

end of the ~ear 
(nI) Amoont of IntMeSt due and payable for IIle period of deiay In 

making payment ; 
(which haw bean paid' but beyond the appointed day during the year) 
but without adding IIle interest specified undafthls Act 

, 
3.24 1." 

1.72 10.28 

1.72 10.28 
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15. 

NIBAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES UMfT!!.D 

Particulars 

Liabilities for Expenses 
Liabilities for Taxes 

TOTAL: 

18. BErnu!!. FROM opERATIONS 
Sala of Product 

TOTAL: 

Mlaclneome 

18. COS! OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 
Inventory st tha beginning ollila yaar 
Add: Pl,lreIlases 

Less: Imtenlory at tha end olthe year 
Co.1 of raw materl.1 con.umed 

111.1 VALUE OF IMPORTEDIINDEGENOUS RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED 

OESCRIPTION 

Imported 
Imported (% of ccn5l,1mption) 
Indigenous 
Indigenous (% 01 ccnsumptlon) 
TOTAL: 

19. CHANG" IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED & SEMI FINISHED GOODS 
Inventories et the beginning of the year 

Inventories at the end oftha year 

TOTAL: 

SANJEEV ANAND&ASPTES 
Chartered Accountant. 

2,65 
725 
0.32 

1021 

326.22 

326,22 

81.29 
D ... 

82.11 

11.47 
176.74 
188.21 

1\ •. 07 
1t19,14 

VHr.nd.d on 
31,03.2024 

0,00% 
169.14 

100.00% 
169,14 

9.58 

7.89 

.... 

iR,,!n' '~hJ 

, 

2.72 
4.81 
2.06 

'.58 

556.94 

/5/58.94 

66.17 
1.27 

70.44 

9.52 
274.85 
284.38 

11.47 
272.91 

V.rended on , 
'1.03.2023 , . 
0._ 

272.91 
.100.00% 
I 272.91 , 

13.02 

9.S8 

3.44 
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NIR.I.,II$PAT INOUS!RIES LIMITED 

SAMJ.EEV ANAND & ASSOCIATl:S 
Chartered Accountants I 

tjOTES; ON FINANCI8L ;;!TATEM!;NI FQB TH!;i YEAR E~DED ;!;1!il MAB!:<I::I Z!!~ iBI, In Lakhl 

IPARnCULARS 

20. EMp!.Oyf:E BEMEm EXPENSES 
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 
Staff W"If"re Expenses 

TOTAL: 

21. FINANCE COST 
Interest on borrowings 
Bank Commission & ChargOIS 

TOTAL: 

Insurance 
Ralas. Taxes & Fees 
Advertisement 
Misoellllneous Expel"lBes 
Loss on salE! of fixed Assets 

TOTAL: 

V .. rended on 
31.03.2024 

, 

43,22 
0,16 

-4U8 

0.85 
0,21 

1.05 

18,82 
21.99 

11,21 

0.96 
1.89 
0,21 
0,11 
0,12 
0,27 ",. 
0.22 
0,08 
3,49 
'.99 
0,-42 
1.02 
0,50 

815.H 

V .rended on 
31.03.2023 

, 

31.32 
0,09 

31.41 

0,88 
0,38 

1.25 

27,11 
29,31 

7.49 

1.11 
2,13 
0,38 
0,33 
0.07 
0.55 ,,, 
0,22 
0.08 
3,83 
4.32 
0,42 
0,15 

18.80 
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NIP' IISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND&ASSOctATES 
CIlarteted Acccuntanls 

NOTES ON FINANCiAl STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024 IR.! in Lakhl 

23. TAX EXPENSES 

(.) Incom' tax .xpen .. 1 (ben.m.) 
Currwnt tIIJI : 
Currenllax 
Tax refund I reversal pertaining 10 earlier years 
O.r.1ftd tax : 
Deferred tax 

Total Tu .xpense I (beneflll 

(b) Raconcillatlon 01 effectlv. tIIJI rata : 

28.97 
1.61 

(1.39) 

29.1' 

56.48 
0.22 

(0.73) 

I5S.H 

A reconciliation of income tax expense appilcablB to eccoun~ng profit I (loss) before tax et the 8latutory Income 
tax rete 10 recognIsed Income lax expense for the year indicated ale BS follows: 

DESCRIPTION 

Net Income before taxes 
Enacted ~ llIIe In India 
Computed Ia>: 

Effeel of lax pertslnlng to prior years 
Tax e)(pense for the year 
Effective Income tax rate 

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR 

• 

110.20 
25.17% 

27.74 

(0.16) 
1.61 

29.1. 
26.48 

I 

222.17 
25.17% 
'56.07 

(0.32) 
0.22 

55.96 
2!5.12 

StBtulory Income Taxes Bre ."esled as perth. prOYi8lons of sscllon 115BAA of the Income Tsx Act. 1961. 

24. EARNINGS PER sttARe 

Nel profit after lax as per Statamenl of Profit and Loss 
attributable to Equity Shareholders 

Weighted aversge No. of Eqult)' Sh.res 

Basic Bnd Ollui!!d Earning per share (Ra.) 

Face value per &quityshara (Ps.) 

81.02 

600.000 

13.50 

10.00 

166.80 

600,000 

27,BO 

1(},(}(} 

• Page 83



NIB .... 'SPAT INDUSTRI!!S LIMITED 

, 
SANJEEV ANAND & AS~OCIATES 
C/Ia1effld Accountants 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024 (Bf. 'n Lakhl , 

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

25.1 graHl! BIlk Man'R,m,Qi 

The Comp,any being In , eapital intensive Industry, fts objective is to maintain a stmng credlt raUnQ. healthy capital 
ratios and eslab~sh a capital structure !hat would maximise the return to stakeholders through'pptimum mIx of 
debt and equity. 

The Company's capital requirement Is maInly to fund Its capacity expansion, repayment of principal and interest 
on its booowings. The principal source of funding of the Company has been, and Is elCpE!Cled to: continue to be, 
cash generated from its operations supplemenled by funding from bank borrowings end the capItal markets. 

, 
The Company regularly considers other fl/1.nclng and refinancing opportunltlea to dlv'/lI'1y Hs deO! profile, reduce 
Interest cost lind elongate the malurf!y of its debt ~rtfolio. and closely monitors ~9 JudiciouS 'lidcation amongst 
competing capital expansion projects to capture mar1cet Opportun(llas at minimum risk. I 

Tne Company mooitors (ts capital usIng gearing lliIio. whk:h Is net debt divided 10 Iolel equity. Net debt Includes. 
Interest bearing loons end borrowings less cash and cash equlvalents.Benk balances other thanl cash ilI1d cash 
equlvatenl8. 

6.43 

1,215.97 

21,2 C"",orlU of nOlnc!.! !n .... um.na 

cot! 
25.29 24.46 
36.95 

Iqufvelenls \." 
ftn.nctal aaHla at amortlaad coat (A) 65.58 

, lIabllltl .. 
It Imortlaad coat 

132.65 132.10 
11.79 6.43 
74.15 96.73 
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, 
SANJEEV ANAND & AS~OCIATES 
CMrtered Ar;:cQuntantll 

NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES UNITED 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENRED 31st MARCH 2924 

26. Financial risk management 

The Company has a Risk Management CommHlee established by its 80ard of Di«Ictora for ove~' jng the Risk 
Management FremBWQfk and developing and monitoring the Company's rlak managemebt p 101M. The risk 
management porlCles are established to ensure timely identification Bnd evaluation of risks, s ng acceptable 
risk threshl;.dds, identifying Bnd mapping Wilbols !lQllinst Ihese risks. monitor the risks and thel Lllmits. improve 
risk 8I>'18IeI18SS and lranspruency. Risk management policies end systems are reviewed reg lany to reflect 
changes In the martet conditions and the Company's adM!lee to PfO'Ilda reliable Information to ttla Man.gament 
and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of tha rlak management framewor1c in ralaijan to the ri$k faced by the 
ComllOlllV. I 

The risk management policies aims to mitigate the ronowing risks arising from the IInanciallnslrumbnts: 
- Market risk I 
- Credit risk and 
- Llqulo:Iity risk 

26.1 Mari!el:rlsk 

Market risk la the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of a financlallnstroment wilt fluctuata because of 
changas I" the markat prices. The C emPlOY Is axpollld In the ordilllfY course of ~s business to'rlsks related to 
changes in Iol't'llgn ClHTency e~nga rates. commodity prices ano:l Interest rates. I. 

The Company seeks to minimize the effects ofthaae risks by usIng den'Va~ve finandallrmruments to hedga risk 
exposules. The UN of finanelal o:Iallvatlve$ Is governed by the Company's polleles approveo:l by lila Board 01 
DlrectOl"S ...... hlch provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, Interest rata Ilsk, clecltt risk, the use of 

:t~n=:~~:S:Ur:~~=a:~nc~\~:=,::~:~~ a'r: :~;7n~::1 ~:~:~~~u~~~~=::~~: , 
The Company o:Ices not entar Into or tlao:le financial Instruments. Incluo:llng dertvattves for speculative purposes. , 

26,1.1 CommoditY Rriet r1'k 

, 
The Company's revenue Is expesed to the market risk cf prico fluc:tl,l8tions related to the sale of Its products 
(Suttons). Malket forces generally datermine prices for the buttons sold by the Company. These~prices may be 
Influenced by factors such 85 demand ano:l supply, production costs (inoludlng the cOst5 of raw msteriallnp,rtS) 
and global and leglonal econDmic: condition. and gl"llWlh. Mve"a changa. In lOY of these factO~ may reduce 
the r_null that the Company earns flom the salll of Its products. 

The Company primarily procured Its raw matellata I. e. Resin, Styrena, Pigment & Chemlcafa ete. In lite cpsn 
markel from third partla. during the financial year ended 31.03.202<4 and Is therefore subject 10. fluctuations In 
prices. 

, 
The Company aims 10 sell the products III pnlveRing macke\ prices. Slmlillriy the Company procures key raw 
mafarl8fs like Resin, Styrene, Pigmeni etc. bated on plllYBlling merket r.lea a. Ihe seiling prices Or buttons and 
the pricee of Input raw materials move In tha same dlraction. I 

The Company as a matter of policy has not hedged the c:omodlty risk. 
, 

The following table dlllails the Company's sensltlvf\y to a 5% mOll8ment In the Input price of 'Sin, Styreno, 

Pigments .elc. The sensitivity analysis includes only 5% change in commodily prices for quanfity sold Dr 
consumed during the yeal, w~h an other variables held COIlstent. A lno;IicGtea .~n IncreaH In , 
plcfil where Ihe commodity prk:es IncleaH by 5%. For II 5% reduction In • thBfB WDuld be a 
comparable impact 00 profit, and !he balances below would be negative. 
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~1)EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To The Members of 
NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

R~port on tbe Audit of the Ind AS Financi.1 Stlltements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompllll~ing lnd AS Jinanchd statements of Nimj Ispat . ndustries 
Limited ("the Company"), which comprises the Balance Sheet as lit March 31. 2024. the 
Statement of Profit IIlKI Loss (including O!her Comprehensive Income), Slatcmen! of Cash 
Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity fOT !he year then ended and :-'otbs to the 
Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies ~d other 
explanatory inlormation (hereinafter referred to as the "fil\UDcilll swtemcnts·'). 

In our opinion WId to the be>t of our inlonnation and according to the explanation. gh·en to 
us, the aforesaid Ind AS finaneial slatements give the infonnation required by the C mpanie~ 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give II true WId fair '~e\V in cqnfotnlity 
"ith the accounting prin~ip1es genemlly accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31. 2024. its profit including other comprehensive incomel its cash 
f1ow~ and changes in equity for tlK- year ended on thnt date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted oar audit of the lod AS financial statements in accordance v.ith the tandllJ'ds 
on Auditing (SAs). as specified ander section 143(10) of the Act. Our respoIISibilities uoder 
those Stondards are further deseribed in the <Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Ind AS Financial Slatom"lents' section of our report. We are independent of the CO~P!lflY in 
accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Aecountanl~ of 
India together with the ethical requiremeols that are rdev!Iflt to our audit of the,ifimmcial 
stalements tmder the provisions of the Aet and th~ Rules there uoder, and we havd fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the IC~I's Code 
of Ethics. We believc mat the audit e\~dence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. I 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit mailers arc those matler~ that. in our professional judgment. were of most 
signifie!lOl"e in our audit of the lnd AS fil'\llOeial ~tatcment.~ lin the !inanciol yerr ended 
March 31, 2024. These matter.; "'"eTC oddresscd in the eoutext of our audit of tho lnd AS 
finiUl~ial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do 001 J rovidc a 
separate opinion on these m~tters. For each matter below, our de.<;cnption of how. ur audil 
oddrcsscd the matter is provided in that eontext. 
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We have dctcnnined the matters deseribed beiow 10 be the key audit mnJrs 10 be 
communicated in our «:]Jon. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in theJ~udilor's 
respon,sihilities for the audil of the Ind AS financial stlllemCllIS section of o*r rcpon, 
including in relation 10 these matters. Accordingly. our audit included tlle pcrf0TtUllce (If 
procedures designed to respond to our assessment (lfthe risks of male rial misstatenicnt (lfthe 
fud AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures. including the ptocedurcs 
performed \0 addrc.~s the matters below. provide the basis for our lIudit opil1i~n 011 the 
accompanying lod AS fmandal slalemcnt~. I 

I. Property. Plant & Equipment and Capital Work in progress 

Valuation and existence of property. plant and equipment including assessmcm ,of useful 
Jives and residual value, Property, plunl and equipmeni rcpresenl5 II significant pro~ortion or 
the Compan)'" usset bas~. The cSlimutes and assumptions made 10 dctcnnirte th~11 carrying 
amounts, including whether IIlld when 10 capitalize or expense eertPin costs,. and lIIe 
detennination of depreciation charges are material to the Company's financial posltion and 
performance. The charges in respecl of periodic depreciation are derived after eSli~ating an 
!ISSeI's expected userul life and the eXpccled residual vulue. Cbanges 10 asset'slean)"ing 
amount~, expeeled usefui lives or residual value could result in a material impajl on the 
financial statements and hence coIISidered as key audit matter. 

How our audit addreued the Key Audit Malter I 

Our audit procedures induded the fnUowing: 

Our audit approacb ~"Onsistcd evalualion of design and implementatlon of eon~ois. and 
testing the operating effectiveness of the internal controls over "aluation or propei;ty. p1an1 
and equipment WId revi~w of useful lives; Periodic physical verification of prupe~'. plWIt 
and equipment for adequacy lind apprnpriatcness 01" lhe nccotmting and disclosure by the 
Managemcnt: I 

• 

• 

• 

• 

We obtained an undtm;tanding of the Comp!lI1Y's capitalization policy and ~!ises~d 
forcomp1\ance with the rdevnot acr:otmling standards; I 

We cllll"ied oul SlIbstantiw t~SIS on random ..ampling for all the major alMilions. 
deletions to the as~ts by applying alllllc characteristics ofeapital expenditu~, propt:r 
classification of lIIe same, with reference to the company's policy and aecounling 
standards; I 

We obtained an understanding on management assessment relating to pro~rcss of 
projects nod their intention 10 bring lIIe asset to its intended use. I 

We nblRlned certificates relating to useful lives of assets where. required. 

Inrormation Other than the Financial Stakments and Andiwr's Report Thereo 

Tile Company's Board of lJircetol'l) is responsible for Ihe other information. TJ c other 

m;'~:::~~:~~~~~:::~~:::::~~::;'"'~ ludcd in the Annual report. bUI docs not in' ude lIIe 
A """,rt thereon. 
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'I 

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial slatemems does nol cover the other informa ~ n and we 
do nOI express any form nfassurnnce conclusion thereon. I 

in connection with our audit nfthe Ind AS financial statements. our responsibilit I is to read 
the other information and, in doing so. consider wheth~T the olher information is: ateriaHy 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit oi otherwise 
appean; to be materially misstated. Tf, based on the 'work we have performed, W\' conclade 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; ,"e an: required to . eport that 
foet. We have nothing to report in Ihis regard. 

Responsibility of Management and Those Chargal with 
Financial Statements 

, 
GO"nrnanee for lht Ind AS 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section, 1)4(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the At;:\") "1th respect to the preparation of these Ind AS1 fmandal 
~1atements that givc a true and fair vicw of the financial position. financial performance 
including other comprehcnsivc Income. cash flows and changes in the equity oflhl' (;:ompany 
in accordance wilh the accounting principles generaH)' acccpled in India, including t\1e Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) spccified under Section 133 of the Act rc-.Id [with the 
Com panics (Indian ACC(lunling Standards) Rules. 2015 lIS lUTlended. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeqoate accounting records in acf(lrdanee 
.."ith the pro\isions of the Act for safeguarding the ussets: of the Company and for preventin!! 
and delecting rrnuds and other irregularities: selection and application of ap~' ropriate 
aeeountiog poliei~s; making juclgment~ and estimate,~ that are reasonable and pm nl; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate int~mal financial controls. t I al were 
opemting cfft!Ctive!y for crl8uring Ihe accuracy and completeness of the uccounting'fcords. 
relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthc Ind AS rllllUleiui statement~ that gile a true 
and fair view and are free from material miSSlll.tement, wheth~r due to fral.d or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS finaneial stalcments. managcmenl is rc.~pon.~ible ror a!i.~cs~ing the 
Company's IIhility to continue lIS a going conccrn. dhclosing, as applicable. mailers related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless managemerh eilhl:r 
intends 10 liquidale Ihe Company or 10 eease opcmlions. or has no rcniislic alteflUltiVf bullo 
do so. 

The BollI"d ofDire~!Ors is aiso responsibie for oversccing the Compan> 's linWIcia] rdpol1ing 
pnxcss. 

, 

Anditor's Responsibilities For Tbe Audit ortbe Ind AS Finanei. Statement!! 

Our objcctivcs nrc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether Ibe Ind AS I$aneiaJ 
statcment~ as a whole arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and 
to iSS\re WI auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable IIS.'illTW1ee is a high lbvcl of 
aSSlJTllJ1ee, but is not a gll!ltllnlec thai an ~udit conducted in aecordanel' with SAs Wil~"lway~ 
dClcctll motcrial misstatcrnenl when it exist~. Misstatements can wise: trom fmud or e rand 
are eousidered materiui if, individually or' they could reasonably be e '. eete<! 
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• 

10 infll,lel\ce the economic decisions of l1SenI taken on the basis of' these Ind 
s!at~mcnLS_ 

financial 

As part oran audit in accordance "ith SAl;, "~ exercise ptofessiOl1a1 
professional skepticism thronghout the audit. We also; 

• Identify and a'ISC5S the risks of material misstatement of the 1m! 
~1:atemcnts, whelher dll<: to fmud or error, design and pcrlbnn audit 
responsive to th05~ risks, and olltaitJ audit evidence that is sufficient and 
to provide II basis lor OUT opinion. The risk of not detecting II material 
resulting from fr-dud is highcr than for one resulting from elTUl". as &<lud 
collusion. falllery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

1 
of 

• 

• 

• 

• 

intemal control. 
Obtain an undcrstm\(\.iug of internal control relevant to the andit in order 
audit procedllre!l dmt arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under section I 

the Act, W~ are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
hIlS adequate internai financinl conlrols system in place and the 
effectiveness of such cOlltrols. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabJ~ness of 
accoullling estimatcs and related disclosures made by m!lltllgement I 
Conclude on the appropriateness of lJllUlagernent's use of the going COlICe~SiS of 
nc~'Ounting and, based on thc audit evidence oblltined. whether n material rtainly 
exists relaled to events OT conditions that may cast significant doubt the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a Jrateriaf 
uncertainty exists. we nrc requiral to drnw attention in our lIuditor's ~urtl to thc 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadeql\atc, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obraine~ "II 10 
thl! date of our auditor's report. However. future events or conditions may cll9se the 
Company to cease to continue lIS a going concern. 

Evaluate the ovcrall presenlation, structUI'C and cot)/ent of the Ind AS linfndal 
statemcrrts, including thc disclosures. and whether the fnd AS financial stat!lrnCIlIS 
represent the underlying tronSllctions and twnts in II rnllMer thnt aehievcs fair 
presentation. I 

We communicate with those chlll'ged with governance regarding, among othcr matterb, the 
plWUled scope anl timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signltlcant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also providc thosc c/ulrged with govcrnanee with a stakrncnt that v.,e have complied ~'ith 
rele\'a!l1 ethical requirements regarding independence. and 10 communicate with thew ail 
relationships and other maben; that may rea~onably be thought to bear on our independ~ncc, 
and where applicable, related SIlfeguunb. 

.1 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, woo :~~t;~ those 
matters fhal were of most significan~c in Lbe audit of~ Ind AS financJal 51 for the 
finandal yeM ended March )1, 2024 and arc therefore the key audit matters. describe 
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or rogulntioll preclndes 
about the matter 01' when, in cXlremdy rare circumstances. we determine thai "'" should 
not be communicated in Ollr n:port because tht: adverse consequences of 

reason~ly be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such cOJllJTlunicntiun. 

Report on Other Legal lind Regulatory Requirement!! 

the CentruJ Oovcnunent of Indiuin fCrm.~ of sUb-section (lJ) of section I43 the Act, 
and Oil the bru:is of sllch checks of the books and record of the Comp 'as we 
considcn:d appropriate and according to the Information and explanations siv'~n 10 us. 
we give in 'Annexure A' II statement on the mailers specified in plll'Ugraphs J ,\md 4 of 

the Ordl!/'. 

2. As required by section 143(3) onlle Act, we reponlhlll: 

fl. We have soUghl and obl<rioed all the infonnalion and explanalion~ which 10 

of our knowledge and beliefwcre necessary for the purpo!iC of our /lwil. 

h. In our opiillon, proper books of accounl as required by law have been ke 

Company so far as il appears from ourexaminalion of those books. 

\ 
by the 

e. The Balance Sheet. 'The Statemenl of Profil and La"" including Other 
Comprehensive rncorne. the .<tatemenl of Cash Flow and Statement nf Chaogl:S in 

Equity dealt wilh by this RolpCl1 are in lI!!rcel1lenl with the books of account. \ 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid !od AS financial statements comply with the tndian 

ACCountin!! Standard~ s~ified tmdcr seclion IJ3 of the Act, read with ComfaniCS 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015. as amended. I 

e, On the basis of ",Titlen representations received from the directors as on MIll'Jn J [, 
2024. Iaken on record by Ihe Board of DireclOrs. nOlle of Ihc Directdrs is 
disqu.alifiecl as on 31,t March, 2024. from h=ing IIpPOimed as II Dire;::tor in te I of 

&elion 164 (2) of the Act, 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the intel'Tllll fioancial controls over fin' iaJ 
reporting of the company and the operating elTectiVC!1ess of such <;:ontrol~. re 

our separate repon in "Annexure B" to Ibis repon. 

I 
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g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repor1 in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amen' ed. In our 

opjnion and 10 th~ best of our infonnation and according to th~ explana ons givcn 

to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its dil"C(:lors during Ihel.}ear is in 
Qccordancc with the provisions of section )97 of the Act.; I 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in thc Auditor's ~por1 in 
aoxordanec with Rule II of the Companies (Audit und Auditors) RU!eS

I
2014. lIS 

amended, in our opinion und to the best of our information and accordi.rg to the 
explanations given to us: I 
(1) The ComPllny hIlS discloscd the impact of pending litigations on its· llUlncili! 

pas ition in its Ind AS fin!lneial statemenl •. 

(ii) The Company has IlUIde provision, as required under thc applieabJ. law or 
accounting stnnt\mds, for material fore.'<eeabJe losses, if any, on I ng-lCfffi 

contracts including derivative contracts. 

(iii) There has been no delay in ITansferring amount, required to be lnlIlSf, J"Te<i, to 

th~ 1nve..~tor Education 1!nd Protection Fund by the Comp;my 

(iv) (a) The Management has represented thal, to the best of it's knowlc Fe and 

belief, as disclosed in Note 34 10 the lirutncial statements, no fimch ba'f ~n 
adV!lnced or loaned or invested (either trom borrowed funds or.hat.; M'miwn 

or lUIy other source... or kind of funds) by the Company to or in all~ other 
person(s) or cntity(ies), including foreign CIltili~s ("hnUlmeworic.<."), with the 

undcrstl!JJ(\ing, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that thc Inte~ediluy 
shaH, dirtctly or indirectly lend or invest in othcr persons or entities id1tified 
in any mlllU1cr whalsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 

BeDefieiories") or provide any guarantee, sccority or !he like on behalfbf the 
Ultimate Bencficiuries. I 

(b) The Managemen! has represented, that. 10 the best of it's kuow'~dgl~ and 
belief, lIS disclosed in Note 34 to the fin!lncial statcments. no funds huvel"been 

receiv~d by the Company from any per:>on(s) or entity(iesJ, including fJeign 
cntities ("Funding Parties"), with the underslanding. whether n:cordJd in 
writing or otherwise. that the Company shall, dircctly or indirectly, le~d or 

inve~t in olher persons or entities identified in 1liiY manner whatsoever ~y or 
on behalf of Ihe f'lmding Party ("Ultimate Benefkiories") or providel any 

guarantee. security or the lik~ on behalf of the l1Jlimate Bencl1eiarics. 
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(e) U~sed on I~ audit pnlCcdures pcrlormc<i thai ha.\'e I:ll.-en conmdered 

IC35lOn~ble nnd nppropriate In the drcurnstanc;C5. noU,ing has tonte 10 OUf 

noticc that hM caused us 10 bciicw IMl the Kl'l'I!!iCnlulions under !ub-clau~ 
(i) iVld (ii) or Rule I I (c}. 3.< provided unckr (a) Md (b) aoow, conlllin My 

nlBl~ri~J miS5tal~rncnt. 

(\') l\ascd on our c'lllll1.inulion. which in~Juckd tnt check$. the ComjX1n)' hilS u:!Cd 
ftOX<lunlinQ 5011\\1I1C ror ITl:IJnlllil1 inl:! ilS books of II((OUOI ror Ihe financTdl year mdc:d 
3' " Mllreh 2024 MIlch did nul has II fea[uI'C of~ording audit lI'IIil (roil lOS) focil;ty 
and Ill!: !lame "1l!I not OpCmled throu{tnou\ the year for all rcic\,ant ~fons 
n~'d in 1'-' ~ntin~ sofiwore. 
As J)1'(IViso \0 RuI~ l ( l) orlbe Companies (Accnunts) Ruks, 201 4 Is nppliellhlc from 

01" Apri l 2023. reponing under Rule 1 I(g) of the Companies (Audit WId Auditors) 

Rules. 20 14 on prcseMllion of audir truil lIS per the stalulCll}' I,.'quiremcnls lor m:oro 

ret.:nlion is not aJIPlieab[e ror Inc Jinllllcilil year coded] I" March 1024. 

For SANJ~;[::V ANAND & ASSOO[ATES 
Chartered AccJun\:u>ls 

Firm Re¥- So. 007171C 

SJ,·.· ej;,.h-, , 
(Sumil G ) 

p",~ 

M.NO.4234S3 
UD\l\' 244234SJBKBXNOI~IO 
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT , 
I 

(Referred to purllgrapb 2(t) onder 'Repon: on Other Legal and Regulatory Req' "remcnts' 
section of our repan: of even date) Il 
Report on the Internal Financial Control Over Financial RCjIOrting under Cia se (i) of 
Sub_section 3 of Sed ion 143 orlhe Companie!! act, 2013 ('the Act') 1\ 

We have audited the inlerlUlJ financial controls O\'Cf financial reporting of !'.'iraj Isput 
Indu;.trics l.imited ("the Complllly") as on Man:h 31,2024 in corijunction v.ilh o~ audit of 
the Ind AS financial .statements oflbe company for th~ year ended on that date. 

Management's Rcspon.sibUlIy for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is resporu;ible for cSlablishing and maintaining linternal 
financial controls biIS\!d on the internal controls over Jinancia! reporting criteria esillbJished 
by the company considering cSSClltiai components of inlernal conlrol1itated in the Guidano;;c 
Note on Audil of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (the 'Guidance NOle'). These responsibilities inclUde the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adcqLllltc int~rnul financilll conlroh! iliItt were 
opcrn!ing effectively for ensuring the orderly IlI1d efficient conduci of lis business, including 
adherence 10 company's policies, the safeguarding of its assr::t, the prevention and cJtlllCtion 
offI1luds and errors, the accuracy and completcncs~ ofthc accounting records. and th~ timely 
preparation of the reliable financial information. lIS required under the Companies Act,!2013. , 

Auditor's RespoDsibility 
, 

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
IiWlIlciaJ reporting with reference 10 these financial stalcmenL\ based on our audit. Wc 
conducted our audit in acCordWltt v.ilh the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Fi~andal 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note"J and the St3J1dards on AudIting as 
~pccified under section 143(10) of tbe Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal finondal controls ond. both issued by the lrutitute of Churtcred AecoJntllllls 
of India. "Iltose Standru"d.~ and the Guidance Note require thut we comply with ~ical 
requirements and pion and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these finhncial 
statements was establishal and maintained and if such controls operated eifeClivc!Y'lin all 
material respects. 

Oue uudit invoh'cs perJorming proredures to obuiin audit evidence about the adequacy ~flhe 
internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of intcrnal fl/UlDcial controls over financial reporting included ohlainiri,g an 
understanding of internal financial controI~ over financial reporting. a.<;scssing thc risk tnat a 
material weakness exists, and tc.'rting and cvaIuaLing the design ond operating elTec[i\"Cn~ss or 
intenwl contml bascd on [he lISSesscd ri~k. The procedures selcctcd depend on the auditor's 
jwlgm~nt, inclUding the MSCSsmCn! of the risks of material missrruement of the fin.Jpcial 
statements, whether due to fI1lud or elIDr. !I 
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We bel iC'"C thaI the: lWdil evidence wo: ban' obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10 pro\'idc a 
basis for our audit opinion 011 the Compillly', inlem~lli lUll'lCia! cocmol~ system ovo:r rilUlI1cilll 
rtportinij, 

!\tea!!i_ .. or Intemll Finlllci.1 Control!; (h'tr Fin.lld!!1 Reporlinll: 
A compen)", intemal financial contml over filUUlci81 reponing witb rcfo:rencc \0 t/lese 
finandal st~tcmo:nLS is ~ proc .... s dcsi ll,lled 10 pl'ovide reaso<UIhle asSUTlll'lCC n:gatdin" the: 
reliability of finllIJCial reporting nnd the pKpIL(lItiOll (If fioanc:ial stalemcnLS fOfl eXlemal 
purposes in IIC<:nnSance .... itb fj;cnerully IIcco:pl<:d account in" principles. A \:OmpMy's in\emul 
fil\lll1dal toIlllOl ov~ r linaneiul rq>Oninl: wilh refo:l'C1lcc to thcs ~ finlUlCi al 5!llkmc:nt,,! includes 
tho.'IC policks lind pn>c~lll'l:S IDat (I) ~r1ain 10 the: maintenance of co:cords that. in 
J~lIsol'lllbJe Iktai l. ao;cwatcJ y and fairly n::l1m the trunsactions and di .• posiliOll$ "f the : • .'~I~ 
a(the OOIllpe1ly; (2) pn:widc n'pwnao!c USSU!1lflCC Ib ~1 lrtIllSIICtioM lII>.: rccorddl W$ t'Io.'ttlISIlIy 
II) pennil preJXI.mtiOll of financial ~JHlemCntS in occonJanee with Kcntr:tlly ac~plo;:d 
1ICI:0000ling principles, .:III that 'ttdpl. and e"penditufe.l; of the comp;wy are being made OIlly 
in accordance with autboriSiltions of lIl3ni\iCnwnl and dim:1on o f the company; and (3) 
pro\idc rcasonub!c (lS5\JnUlce n.sunling pn:\'cntion or timely IIcl~'O;tion or un:1U1horlscl 
acquj,itiOll. \l§(, or dhiposition of the cnmpany' ~ as9Cts thaI could hal'" a malmol cITcct on 
!he finan cial siatetncnb. 

hl_erent Lilllit~IiOiIi or Inlern;l Financial CODlnlb ove, liinl ndlll RepOrlln~ 
B«ause of tho: inhcrcntlimililtions ofintcmal financial COIItrols over financial rt:ponin\l. ",ill! . , 
rt:f~ to these finaJlcial SUl1ement$. including loc pos!iibiJll~' or L'OI1usion 01' impropcr 
man~ge!llcnl ~rridll of control$. material mi$5blemenl~ dw: ID error Of fraud Alay ocCllr lIIld 
IlOI be dCleclc't! . Al sD, projections of 1liiy C\ 'alU3lion 0.1' the internal financial control- over 
filWlc;al rcporling ",ilh reference to tbesc finaocial 5Ultnncuts to I'iJIIJn'C ~riods an: sub.ieo:: llo 
!be: risk thai the internal fi!lllI1cial cOIItrol 0\'eI' finan<..ial reportinG .... ill! rcfcl'l:l'lCC to thes<­
finanei~1 stllto:mtnlll may beeom.: iltildcqUClle btcft~ uf ch8llgCl; [n conditinllS, or lbat !he 
d~'gJ'e\l ofeompHnncc "ilb the policies or proccduus l1\aydeteriol1ll c. 

Opiniott 
In our opinion. 10 the best of O\Ir infOl'm ation and occording [0 the cxplllnations Wiwn 10 II!>, 

the CO.mpany has. in 1111 m:llcrilll r~ lID adequate intcrnal financial conlTOl. 5}'slem over 
financial reperling and sucb inlcmu.i filllLnCiai controls over lilllU'lCital tqJOrling wen: 
opcmting effectively I1Jl al ~urch 31. 2024, bossed on the intcmw contml €A'er li l\lllltilli 
f\.jlOf\ina criteria C'>lBbl idu:d by I"" Company considennK the ~SSCnli.llJ comj'lOnc:nLS of 
internal control ~lDled in tbt: liuidmc:e Note iS$UCd by Ib~ Inslilule ofChartercd Accounlants 
oflndill. 

D~l<: : 

For SANJEEV ANAND &, .... SSOCIA TES 
Churtc~ AccouUl3.llts 

Firm Reg, No. 00717JC 

-:;;..J.Jt,J.-
(Sumil Gupta) 

P,l/tJlI.:r 
1\1':-';0.42345.1 

UlliN 2~42H51BK»XNO I 61D 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Requirement' section of our 
report of even date) 

To the best of our infonnatioll and according to the explanations provided 10 n, by the 
Company and the books of account and recards examined by us in the normal :!ourse of 
audit, "'"I: state that: 

]. (a) The company has maintained proper r~cords showing full particulanl, i,neJuding 
qumrtitative details ami situlltion of property. plan! & equipment, c.apilal work-in­
progress. 

~) 

,,' 

,d, 

(e) 

The Company has a regular programme for physical verification in phllSed' periodic 
manner, which, in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the dompwl}' 
and the nature ofils assets. According 10 the information and explanlllions giv

l 
n to us, 

no material discrepandes \\.'Cre noticed on such verification. 

ACCording to the information and explanations given 10 us and the recQrci c amined 
by us and ba.~ on the examination of registered sales deed.! convey~ncel deed I 
transfer deed provided to us, we rep4'>rt that the title deeds, comprising·,a/I the 
immovable property of iand and acquired building which an:: freehold. arc hcl~ in the 
name urlhe Company as at the balance sheet. \ 

The Cornpa!ly has no! revah.ed any of its property, plant and equipment during !he 

Y'M \ 

No proceeding.. have been iniliated during Ibc y~ar or are pending agalqsl the 
Company lIS at ~ 31, 2024 for holding an}' benami property und~r !he FJcnami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (as amended in 2016) !l1ld rules! mlKle 
thereunder. \ 

, 
2. (a) As ~xplained 10 us. the inventories were physically verified during the yeur ~y the 

Management at reasonable intervals except for inventories lying with third parties 
where confmnations have been received by the mllI!llgemellt. In our opinion nod pil3Cd 
on infomrntiun and eXpianations given to us, the coverage and procedure oC,lIueh 
v~rificalion by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size Of the 
Company and the nature of its operutions. "No discrepancies of 10% or more in the , 
aggregate fur each cillSS of inventoriCli were noticed on su~h phy~ical verification of 
inventories I alternate procedures pcrfonncd as applicable. when compared wi~ t~ 
books of account. 
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(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits from banks 
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In and 
the infonnation and explanations given to us, the 
comprising stock and book debt statements. filed 
in agreement with the unaudited booh of aecount 
quanern. 

3. According to the infmroation and explanations given to us, thc company has 
investment in, pro\.'ided !IllY guarantee or seeurity or granted any loans or 
nature orroans, secured or unsecured to companies, fllms,1imited i 
any olber panies cO\'ered in the "-,gister maintained under section 189"'" 

4. In our opinion and w:cording to thc infonnation and explanations given to us. 
hw; complied with the provisiortS of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect 
loans, making investmcnts and providing guarantees and securitie..~, as applicable. 

5. The company has not accepted "",. d"p 
Act and the Companies (Acceplance 
thc provisions of clause 3 (v) of the order are '" " 

6. As txpillined to liS. the Central Govcmml!l1t of India has not specified 
cost reeords under sub seetion (I) of SCtlion 148 of the Aet for any 
Company. Therefore the provisions ofclause 3(vi) nfthe ordcr are not 

" 

7. According to the infonnatiOl) and explanations given to us, in re.spccl of statuto/)' dUF: 

• , 

of 

'h' 

(il The Company hIlS genemlJy been regular in depositing undisputed sllltutOJ, dues 
including provident fund, employees' Sllltc insunmce, Income ta.'{, goods and ~ervice 
ta.'{, duty of customs, cess and lUIy other material statuto/)' duCl; applicable to il with 
appropriate authorities. I 

, 
<ii) There are no undisputed IImounl< payable in respect of provident fund, employec~' slate 

inSUrance, Income tax, goods and service tax, dut\' of cU$tOms., cess and anylother 

:~~t~~ ~:u:~;d:t~el~~:C~ 1I~~~I~t March. i024 for a period of IJlQre thfn six 

8. There were no transIlctions relating to previously unrecorded income tbat were sUrrcnf!ered 
or disclosed as income in the tax IIs.>;essmenlS under tbe Income Tax Act, 1961 (13 of 
1961 1 during the year. 

9. (a) In our opinion and according ItJ the infonnation and explanations given to u.1. the 
company hIlS not defaulted in repayment ofJoans or bonowings to !he banks and finsrcial 
in.';tjtutions. I 
(b) The Company hIlS not been dcclared wilful defaulter by any bunk. or financial 
institution or government or all}' government authority . 
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(e) To the best of our knowledge and beUcf. in our opinion, tCTIll loans Ilval
1
jed by the 

Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes forl,':wnieh the 
loans were obtained I 

(d) On !Ill ovemJJ examiootion of the flrnUlcial statcmet]ts of tile Company. funds raised on 
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for !ong-tcml\purpo.ses 
by the Company. I 

I 

(e) On an overall exami!1lltion of the financial staternet]IS of the Company. the ~ompany 
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet Ihe 0l'liga'ions 
ofils subsidiaries, an associate or II joint venture 

(f) The Company has not mised loans during the year on lhe pJed~e ofseclIrilies held in ils 
subsidiaries or joint ventures or a'lSOCiale comp!llli~. 

10, (a) The Company ball not raised money by way of initiol pubiic ot1er or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reponing unde

l 
clause 

3(x)(al of the Order is nol applicable 

(b) The Company has nol made private pracem~nt of shares during the year 
reporting under dause 3(x)(b) of the Order is nol appliCAble. 

hence 

11 (a) According to the information and expllll1i!tions given 10 us, no malerial fraud by the 
eompany or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or rtponcd 
during the course of our audit. 

(b) To the best of our kncowlooge. nco report under sub-~ction (12) of stet ion 141 of the 
Companies Ad has been Iiled in !'onn ADT 4as p=rib~d under rule 13 ofCon1pllllies , 
(Audit und Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government., during the vear w1d upm , , 
the date of this report. 

, (cl As Auditor, we did not receive any whistle-blowcrcomphrinl during the year. I 
I 

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. There/ore. the provisions of blause 
3(xil) of the order are not applicable I 

, 
13. According 10 Ihe infolDlation and explanations giVC"ll to us. the tnlnsactiOi]s .... itIJ the 

reJated panies are in compliance with Section 177 and 181i ofllle COmpanies Ael!12013 
where applicable and details ha\'C been discloscd in lhe noles 10 the standalone 1i00tndai 
stalements, as required by Ihe applicabie accounting standarrls. I 

14. (a) ln cour opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate ",ilh 
the size and the nature ofils busine.~s 

(b) We have considered. the internal audit reports Issued to the Company during lhe·y~r 
and covering the period upto Mareh 2024. 

\ 
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IS. Acton,linll (h~ information and c"planlllioll given 10 us, lhe oompany has 1101 cnlcred iIlteo 
My fIOn-e3Sh InIn5aclion ..... ith !.he dirc:eto( or persons 1:0=100 wilh his M TcfCl'fed 10 in 
section 192 or the Companies Act, 201). 

[6. (a) In our opinion, !he Comp;>ny is 1101 Kquired 10 be regi$ten:d u.nder section 45-IA of 
the Rcscrve ll!lllk oflndia Acl. 1934 
(b) The Company ha~ nol eondu~lcd any Non-Bankina Financial 0\' Housing Fil\3nCC 
acti\lilics dllring the )-CII( 
(cJ 'fhc Comp6!ly is nOl a Con: Investment Company (CIC) :L~ defined in the regul~lioc\s 
made by Rescrve: Bilrlk onndia 
(d) As pet (he infonnlllion and c"plruwtion reccive:d.lhI: group docs not h",'c lin)' CJC lU 
JIlIn of the JPUup. 

17. The Company hils ~ ir.cumd ca1b hIsses durinl1 lhc financial year cavcn:d hy our audi t 
and the immediate!)' pre~cdin, financial year 

18. "OJ.rre has been Il<l roignaliun orthc "[olufory audilon of Iho: Company duri"i the ~'eor , 

19. On Ihe b.uis of the: tinancilll mliO'll, 1I~;eing and cxpect.:d dates of rcalizatiOll of fimulI;ial 
n,<;sc:L~ and paymcI11 of filWlllCiai liabililia.. olbcr ;l1fonnaliol1 lI('Comf!M)'il1g Ih~ finllJlCial 
S [~lclTlCnts an.! oW" koowlcdj:\e of the Board of Dim:lonl and Management plan$ and 
based on our l!'"all1iOOtiOM of the ev[dellCc $UPPor1inS IbI: ussumptions. nolhing hb tonIC 
10 our :Ulcntion. which ~IIUSCl1 us 10 bc:1iel'e thDt any IllIIlcrilll uncertainty tlliSlS as on the 
date of Iho: audil 1'<.>pOfl indicating thai Compllny is 1101 capllblc of mC('lin~ its liabilitiC5 
exi~tini!:U tile dijle \I(haJ~ ~ lIS (Il1d wh<.'Illhey fail due within II ~riod ofon~ ~'ear 
fronl the b~hll'''e shc:et ome, Wt:. howc\"O". stale lhol \his is nm an IIS'lUr:mee as to the 
linure \'iabil it)' of the Compnny. We further state thai our I'qlOrtins is nase<l on the fact.'! 
up to the dIIte of the audit I'l:p"rtlll1d we neither gi\'e any I>UUf1LlllltC I"IOT nD)" "",uronce lba! 
aU liabilities fullin!; due wilhin a p.:riod of one ye~r from litc I>:Ilancc shl:cl <blo!. will &<:t 
<.IisdlllrllcU by Ihc: Company as and when they fall due. 

10. Th<.'rC is not liability ofthc compBllY under Ihe (ITOvision of SC\;I!on 13~ of the CompHni~5 
Act. rela!;nlltn C 1l1'Jll>l'l1~ Sllci~1 R~5r)(,1Il.'ljbility. Thcn:fol'!: tiM: I"m\"Won of l.1 .. usc (:0.:) of 
paI"IIlJ13Ph 3 of the ord.:r IlJ"e not Hpplieable to the Campal1)" 

21. The Curnplll1y hIlS DOl rna~ in\~enL~ in SlIbsid;IIl)' comprmy. Therefore, lhe company 
does not ~uire to prepare consolidutcu financ:iiLI 5lIItcmcnt. ~rDTC. Ihe pnl"';ons or 
Cli~ (x~) ofpatUg1lIph 3 of the order arc nol applieablc II;> the ('omp:m>'. 

For SANJEEV ANA,,'IO & ASSOCJA noS 
Chartered AceoUl1lanl5 

firm Reg. No. 007111C 

~~(-
(Sum' l Gupta) 

Partner 
M.NO. <l2345} 

UbI,.. 2"'214S18KBXN01610 
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"IRAJ !SPAT lNtlUSTRIES LIMITED 

0Ih6t OOIH:1.lTll!llt user. 
TOUII - Man eilneRI u .. 1$ 
(2) Cucrtnl."tl! 

I""""' torles 
F~A .. eb 

Trade receN8b1e<; 

Calh Irtd uth I qulvll<entl 
0Ihet b"z 'lOtS wIUl b¥lks 

Othet ClMrenl assets 

1 0\1'. CUfHn l .... t. 

TOTAL · ASSETS 

!;;~!II 6t1:Q I.!AII!!.!I!!i1 
131 Equi ty 

Equity·, nare C<I~rtal 
Other eql1i\y 

To~J _ Equity 
{4} NOII-C\Ut"ebl [llmlltlel 

Financial ~ 

"-",, 
Provisionl 
Dell'ered la>: tiabiiljoe~ (net) 

Tota! · Non currenl n. blUtf •• 

Pro>Wen 
Other current H8biliti ... 

TobIl - c.. rTent 1I.b!lltfu 

A5 pareu. ~01 of ElY"" O'a\II'!!8'CI1ftd 
FOt SANJEev ANAND & ASSOCIATES 

Charterl'Cl ~ 
Firm~. No. OO71 71 C 

5 J.-t f..-
(Sumi! Gupta) 

'"' M.No. 423o&S:> 

U O"'J ~n"" .. , 1'- ,.. ~ \!.y.\I"c .. ,-' Ill .. 

, 
2 
3 

, 
, 
6 

7 

8 
9 

to 

" 

" " " " 

SAHJEEV ANAND & ~SSOClATES 
C,*,1I'f'Wd ....".,.,.,1..,1. 

38.95 

"" 

148,27 

24.046 

22.51 

74 .46 
1.75 

1.208.5' 

60.00 I 
1.155.97 

132.10 

16.93 

8.43 
96.73 
10.28 

For $. ON BEHAlF OF SOARD 
~or NIRA! lSl"A! INDUSn\l!,S LTD. 

elN: l271!l11OL 1116*LC02181 1 

~ 
(V"'shaII CII.UdIVy! 

"""'« DiI> 01119&40 

(Nt~J'~ryt • 
'"'0 
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ST.yEMEHT OF PROF!! ANOlOSS 
FOR THE yE .... R ENDED 3111 MARCH 2924 

, R_n .... from ope .. tlonl 
11 OU..Inc:om. 
111 Tollil incom. 
tVEl<pe_ 

(II) Cosl of r.w malaria .. c:onsumed 
(b) ChaI'lge5- .,lnveIltorie5 of Finished Goods . 

work-fn-progrese a'1I:1 Stoc:k"';n-t".de 
((:) Employee gent/'lt El<per I" 
(cl) F~rw:e Cost 
(e) Oejlredlllion &. Amortk""'n El<peMeS 
(I) Othe, Expenset 
Totlr'"~''' 

V Profil t..for e lI~r;$1Ilional n.m &. tlrx IUJ -IV) 
VI ElIclptIonalllaml 
VH P ' OIltl(klIl) befor. tllX (V-VI) 
VIII Tax ElIpel"llH 
1/"ICOnIe tax for ptrwious year 
CunenlTax 
DefstTed Tax 

rx Profit'or tha yea,.. (V11-Vffl) 

X other Comp .. h'l'Ie'v, IncOlM for the period 
A (i) 1If!m5- INrI WIll not be r8da&Sified 10 pmfit. 01 loss 

(w) I!\COtTle tal! re!al.hjj to ~elTll Nt wiB ftOf be 'K"",r rl 
to jJfOIit ",loss 

6 (I) "ami ttJ.aI will be r.o:\Usifled 10 prollt 01 loss 
(Ii) 11100"''& tlX rfllatlr1g 10 Items thel wi" be recla58l11ed 

~prOfitOlIos$ 

ToUlI OdI.r Comp .. haenl've/ncom. 
XI ToUI COnlptet"H,elvl'tICOIN lor !hi you 
Xli E.ml~1 plr _h,,, 

Basic and OIill!'ed 

""~""~=EV~.''''~'''~·~'~~& ASSOCi .... TES 
Chartered I¢Ot.W"tI8nlI 

l'im'l RogtI. No. 007111C 

51., ,"--t'"'-
(Sum~ Gupte) 

'CA 
.. urn.. 423453 

UC "V) ......... "l ..... n e.1' Q)( t-I 0 \ l \ ... 

" " 
" 
" " " , 
22 

SANJEEV ANANO &. ASSOClA rES 

Cr-..1Arvd AooountIIot. 

169.14 

.... 
43.33 

1.05 
16.70 

1.61 
28.97 

IBt, In btkh) 

"'." 
272.\11 

, .. 
31.41 

'" 

222.n 

0.22 
56.48 
(0.73)1 

27.80 

Fa. &. ON BEHAlF Of BOARD 
For NIAAJ ISPAT IM)lJSTRIES LlO 

elM: U 71o&DL1M5P!.C021t1 1 

o.:..J l ..\ L'-
(Va/tIIIIi Chaudlwy) 
0_ 

IQI~ QMlldlu'l) 
Diree\Or and CEO 

Din 068'339011 Q;n on \ 9640 

~ 
(Sin °1*\ Kh ... ) 

Comp~ny Secretary 
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HIRAI !SPAT INDUSTRIES UNlleo 

A. EqUity Sholl .... Capital 

S, Othr equity 

A.a.1 April 1, 2022 
Prc!il for the yelll 
TlBnsierwithin tquity 
0Ihet ConIprthensiYe Income 
Tolll! Compr.fI.lv. I"~onw 
-FInal dlYldood e>n tqUity Sh.r .. 
-I III: e>n f'kIal dMdend e>n It\'luily Shares 

Pro~t!or IhII yll. r 
Ir ..... wiIhIn equity 
Other Cornprfthensive Income 
lotlol CoIIIp ..... lv. MIcom. 
-Finolll dMdend on oquity Shar .. 
-r ... on Flnal(livklencl on equity $hales 

A.a It MIItCh 31, 2024 

AI pet DOC report of IMIn dah.,ttached 
Fa SANJ.EEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 

Ctuon.rild ~ 
Firm R~n, No. DOTI71e 

,,;cJ-+,-

Genera! 
R,lerv. 

153.83 
• 

15.00 

· 
15,00 

· 

"..., 
• 

' .00 
· 
U. 

• 

· 

173,$3 

SAHJEEV AHANO & ASSOCIATES 
Chaner.d .......... WO'* 

rBI , In ykhl 

Ret.o.lnltd , .... 
Earn!" • 

835..33 911.11 , .... 166.80 
/15.(0) . 

• • 

lSUO 118.80 

· · 
· • 

911.14 1,155.97 

81 ,02 81.02 
(5.00) · 
· • 

18.02 81.02 
• · 
· · 

1083,11 t.23G.19 

For & ON BeHALF OF 60ARD 
FOf NIRIU ISPAT INDUSTRIES l 11), 

eiN' L.27106DlIg"PLC021ali 

tSumh Gup~) (V1IbIIAIi Cl\fUdhrtl 
Dat&d' 29,05.2024 FCA Director 

M.No. 423453 Din 01719640 

UD-':~""""'''''l''·<S.3UItQ)<WO\'\~ l:L:.., CI. 11 _ 

(Nlriol ~udnryJ' 
em 

, 
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8.-.NJE~ ANAND .. ASSOCIATES 
CNrWed~_ 

CASH FLOW STATB4£NT FOR THe YEAR ENpED illST MARCH, 20.jil4 (BI, In bltb! 

PARTICULARS 

, 
(P,gf~)I LOIS gn $alii of IlngltH AsHIs 
Olliei' 1ncM11" fnIfTIl~ 
Prov, for c!'Ilrlge In FIll' Vltul of Sh"111 
Opllf8li1g prof. be .... -ndng capital chaIIaes 

InVlnlOOltI 

Tradl & 0tMr Plyable. 
ca.h "",..,.!ed from operation_ 
OlreCIT_ 
PrOVIOU$ Year AdJustmen1 
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 
CASH FLOW FROM fNyESTME!fTA ACIMTIES 

P~chase "'/\xed IIISf!h 
Sal. of~ Issea 

"" .. "" .,~ 
Prgeeedl fl'l'>m botiVWing from working CIIplta! 
Pfoc:eacts hom boIlOofflg " om tenn Io,ans 
''''''raul liO&o::reas.) in Inv ... ~lmenl$ 
Imlrest paid 

'01 

NET CASH USEe IN FINANCING ACTMTIES (C) 
Net ch.,. In CII,h and CBsb equiv.lAnis 
CiQtI Mel ealb <:IqIJiYalInts a$ Ills! Aprll 
Casl'l Bnd c:ush !!<!lIMIlAnl5 as al 31st March 

31,03,2024 

" 0,20 

111,70 
1,05 
0,59 

(81,29) 
(0,83) 
46 ,35 

(66,111) 

(5.97) 

(30rSl) 
(57,03) 
(28 ,117) 
(1,81) 

(87,81) 

(0 ,19) 
t.25 

111 ,29 
82,35 

0,55 
' .36 

• 

( 1.OS) 
. ,85 

(0,<41) 
1.75 
"3' 

31,g3,2923 

111,S1 
W 

• 

(69,17) 
(l.2:7) 

179,38 

(1!M,70) 
2." 

(a-,7s) 
(16,S1) 
(58,-48) 
(022) 

(73,31) 

(0,-41) 
• 

69.17 
68,78 

(5,21) 
6,0& 

• 

(1,25) 
(0,37) 
(4.92) 
6,67 
1.75 

I, TIIe.oo "" Cull flow 11111"",l1li ..... been Pft!PI'I'OcI under IhII 'lndltect Malhod" as MIl. out in "'d AS-7 
2. F!I!IJreS 11'1 brldcet inI:Ik:all.! Cash Otltflow 

For & ON BEHALf Of' BOARD 
For ""RAJ 1Sf>,o\T 1NOU$TRIES LTD 

CI"" 1.27HMICL IIiBSFlC02:1811 

l "" \..\.. 
(Cna~M1Y" a-~ry) 

0ir1lClOt snd CEO 
Din 06& !139'! 

(& 
Company Secrataty 
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES UMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered AccounbInts 

• 

NOTES QN FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENPEQ 31M MARCH 2024 (B •• ill Ltkhl 

Parlic:ulars 

2. NON CURRENT INVESTMENT 

fal Quoted Sham 
Aggrigate Valua of Investment 
Lees: Pro .... for fair ... a/ue 

Total (a) 

(bl Quoted QebartWrt & Bond. 
Aggrigale Value of Investment 
Less: Pre .... for fair value 

Tetal (b) 

Tetal (e) 

A9llregate ameunt of queted Investment (al Cos!) 
Aggregale amoumof Unquoted Investment 
(at Ccst) 

Aggregate. amount of quoted IllY$SImen! 
(at FaltVllue) 
Aggregate amoun! of Unquoted IllV8$tment 
(at FairValue) 

3. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSElS 

•• 

N0S!!C!l!!id. Cons!de!ed smd yole? staled Q!IlI!rwIjle) 
Security DepQSHB 

TOTAl: 

and certlllad by the management) 
'''~"',."' and net realizable va"'" unless slated otherwise) 

RawMaleriale 
FiniShed & Semi-finished Goods 
Stores, Spares & Packinll Materials 

TOTAL: 

... " 31.03.2024 

, 

0.15 
0.15 

, 

0.11 
0.11 

2.00 
(23.30) 

, ... 
0.27 
'.00 

,.., 
, 

25.29 

25.29 

8.911 

8.99 

111.07 
1.611 
1.11 

"AI 

, , 
, 
~ al 31.03.2023 , 

" 

, 

0.1S 
0.15 

, 

0.11 
0.11 

2.00 
t22.47) 

24.48 

0.27 
'.00 
2.26 

, 

24.46 

".46 

8.05 

8.05 

11.47 
9.58 
1.46 

22.111 
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NIRA' ISPAT INDUSTRIES UMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

NOU:;S ON FINANCIAL STATEMeNT FOB THE YEAR ENgEn 31lt MAACHAA24 {sa. In ! ,'eM 

Particulars 
Au, 

31.03.2024 

" " A.a at 31.03.2023 

" " 
5. TRAp€ RECEIVABLES 

Un!IeCUred and Considered goad 38.95 

38.95 

74..46 

6. 

74.46 

Before accepting any new customer. the Compeny uses an elClemal (lredit scoring system to asSess !he potenUa! 
customel""s credit quelily lind deflnell credit Umlts by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to cuslomere are 
reviewed once a year. . 

The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does It have a 
legal right of offset agalnat any amounts ewed by the Company to II'Ie counterperty. 

Trade receivables hypothecated es security against borrowings. 

In detennlnlng the recoverabirlty of a !rade receivable. !he Company considers any change In the credit quellty of 
the !fade ·recelvable from the dale credit was Inlllally granted up to the end of the report!ng period. The 
concentration of CIllid"rt risk is limited due to !he facl tIJat the customer base is large end unrelated, 

~I:I:! ~!;! ~l!H ~!.!I~LE~ 
CaSh In hand 0.62 0.38 
Balances with banks 

In CUfrent and deposit accounts 0.72 1.37 

TOTAL: 1." 1.75 

7. OTHiB CURRENT ASSETS 
(Unsecured. considered good unless staled oIherwlse) 
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind Or 
for valuato be recoived 
Olher Loans and ad'@l!C6S; 
Prepaid Expenses 
Balarn:es with statutory I government authorities 

TOTAL: 

1.3Da.57 

0.52 
0.91 

1,310.00 

, 

12Da.48 

1.19 
0." 

1,208.51 

Page 107



s. 

N[R+' ISPAT INDUSTRIES UM!TED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants , 

NOTSS ON FINANCIAL STATEMeNT EORTHe YIiM ENQEO ~bl MARCH2!l24 

Particulars 

80.00 60.00 

60.00 60.00 

60.00 60.00 

TOTAl: 80.00 80.00 

The Company has a slng[& class of equity sheres. Each shareholder Is eligible for one vole pef shate held, The 
dividend. if proposed by the Board of Directors Is sub;ect to the approval of the shareholders In enSUing geneml 
meeting. 

149.600 
54,300 
53.900 
47,900 
61.600 
30.400 

, 

R.t.alll Rilbl[!hoIlIllIQ bllll U Iblll[2lllDll[ lilromatt[ litslllili 

Aa on 31.03.2024 Aa an 31.03.2023 
Name afthe share hOlder NO. of % Held No. of shar&S %Hold 

s ares 

Smt. Madllu Chaudhery 149.600 24.93% 149.600 24.93% 
Sh. Nlre! Chaudhry 61.600 10.27% 61.600 10.27% 
Sh, Neerej Chaudhary (HUF) 54.300 9.05% 54.300 9.05% 
Smt. Valshall Chaudhl}' 30.400 5.07% 30.400 5.07% 
8mt. Anuredha Kaoodia 20,000 3.33% 20,000 3.33% 
Ms. Vaidehl Chaudhry 5.200 0.87% 5,200 0.87% 
MI, Pk:llup Suppliers (P) ltd. 53,900 8.96% 53,900 8.96% 
Haryant Stainless Steel LLP 47.900 7.98% 47.900 7.98% 
Nlral SIeeILLP 24.800 4.10% 24.600 4.10% 

% change 
during the year 

· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

· 
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NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIF§ UMITEO 

.. 
SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 

Charlored AccountaIlt~~ 
'. 

, 
NOlES ON FINANCIAL STAJEM!;MI FOR THE YEM SNOED 31M MABCHW4 (!!I. In l.!kh) 

Particulars 

9. OTHER EQUITY 
General Resef\IEI 
Retained Earnings 

TOTAL: . 

(i) Genml resel'V! 

I A .. , 
31.03.2021. 

113.83 
1,063.15 

1.238.99 

, , 
!~at 31.03.2023 

166.83 
967.1<1 

1,155.97 

Under !he erstwhile Indian Companies ACllSS6, a general reserve was created through an ann~al transklr of net 

income at a specified percentage In IICCCldance with applIcable regulations. The purpcsa of these Irnnsfers was 

to ensure lIlat if a dividend cflStnbution In a givlm year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital O~:lha eompany for 

thai yaar, then the total dividend dlstrlbu~on Is ie8l1han Ihe lolal \fistrfbutable resu~s for that year. 

Consequent ro Introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement of mandatory transfer of a specified 
patGlllltage of the net profit to general reserve has been wlthdl'8Wll and the Company can optlon,ally InInsfer any 
smounl from the surpluS of profit or loas aaoounllo thl GenerallllMrYes. 

(ii) RetaIned F,mlR98 
RetaIned eamings are the proIjts thai !he compeny lias earned fiR dete less eny transfer to general f8seJVe. 
diVidends or other distribution paid to Shareholders. 

10. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

Unltcu!!d LOiOl 
From Related Parties 
From Body-CoqlO(;:Ite & Others 

Net Amount , 

11. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 
Deferred Tax liability (Nat) 

TOTAl; 

• 

o.t'.rrad tax alane.,n ... I.tlon to 

. Property. piant end eqUIpment 

Total 

Tom' 

..... t31,t 
March 2023 

16.93 

16.93 

17." 

132.65 

132.65 

15.53 

15.53 

R~r.edl 
re ....... ed through 

POL 
(1.39) 

(1.39) 

(0.73) 

• 

132.10 

132.10 

16.93 

16.93 

.... at 3181 March 

'"" 
• 15.53 

15.53 

18.93 

, 
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SANJEEV ANAND& ASSOCIATES 
Cherlered ~~ts 

, 

NIR'" ISPAT INDUBT!!;!EB UMITED 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDEQ 31st MARCH 2024 (Bt. In bibb) 

Particulars 

12. SHORT TERM BORRpW\NGI 
S.RUM working ClP",I Loa!!!: 
Bank of India 

NetArnount 

A, at 
31.03.2024 

11.79 

11.79 

" "* at 31.03.2023 

6.43 

'.43 
Working capJta! ttmits are 58CUred by first ebarge on the entire currerrt esaets of the company Including slocke of 
raw malarial, wort./n·proQrns. finished goods, book-clebte both prasent & Mure. Working Capital Nmlts el8 
furtller secUred by way of equitable mortgage of Immovable property of the company at 0-10. B.S. Road Industrial 
Area, Gh;niabad and porsonal guarantee of the dIrector.;; of the company • 

. 
• 

13. TRADE PAYABLE 
Dues of micro and sma» enterprises 
Sundry Creditors 

TOTAL: 

3.24 
70.91 

74.15 

,." 
95.66 

96.13 

Amount due to micro and sma!! enlel"prises as defined In the "The Micro. Small and Medium EnI9rprIhS 
Development Act, 2006" has been determined to the extent such parties Ilaw been identified··on the basis of 
Infonniltioi! avaHable with the Company. The dIsclosures .... IatIng to mIcro and smell enterprises is:as below: 

(I) Principal amount remainIng Unpaid to supPlIer at the end of the year 
01) Int8fe8t due I accrued thereon remaining unpaid to supplier at the 

eed of the year 
(ill) Amount of IntareS! due end payable for the period of delay in 

making payment ' 
(which have been paid but beyond the apP<*l1ed dey during the year) 
but without adding the intereS! specified under this Act 

14. SHORT TERM PMytSlOHS 
ProvIsion for Income tax 

3.24 1.06 

1.72 10.26 

1.72 10.28 
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NIRAJ !SPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES , 
Cherlered Accountanla 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE 'fEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2024 fBt, In Lakhl 

Particulars 

HI. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Advance from Customers 
Liabilities for Expenses 
Llablrllies forTaxes 

TOTAL: 

... 
TOTAl: • 

17, OTHER INCOME 
Interet! 
MIS!: Income 

Add: Purchases 

Less: Inventory at the and of the year 
COIIt of raw m.wrlal conaumed 

18. UE 0 1 VAL F IMPOR I EDJf~Q~ENOUS RAW MA TERIAL "Q~SUMED 

DESCRIPTION 

Imported 
Imported (% of consump~on) 
Indlgenoua 
Indlgetloua (% of consumption) 
TOTAl: 

19, ctVJtGEJ IN I!MiNTCRI!S Of FINISHED & SEMI FINISHED GOOpS 
Inventories at the beginning of the year 

Inventories at tha end of the year 

TOTAl;; 

"''' 31,03,202:4: 

, 

, ... 
7,25 
0,32 

10.21 

,,,.,, 

81,29 ,." 
82.11 

11,47 

Ynrendedon 
31:03.2024 

. 
0,00% 

169,14 
100,00% 

169.14 

9." 

7,69 

At. at 31:03.2023 , , 

2,72 
4.81 
,.,l6 

.... 
558,94 

15fJ,94 

68,17 
1.27 

70," 

•. " 

Yeerended on 
31.03,2023 

. 
0,00% 

272.91 
100,00% , 272,91 

13,02 

9,58 

, ,." 
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NiB'!.! I§AAT INOUJIBlE8 UM!I!.D 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCfATES 
Chartered Aectluntmts; 

NOTES ON FINANClAi STATEMENT FOR THE 'fEM ENDED3111 MARCH 2024 fB,. In Lath) 

PAB CULABS 

20. EMPl.Q)'EE BEWIT EXPENlI!iS 
Salaries. wages & BooUI 
Staff Welfare Expenses 

TOTAl: 

TOTAl;; 

". 
& Spares 

Fral9ht & FOlWardin9 
Packing Charg&s 
TelephOlll! Expenses 
Prinllng & Stationary 

fQr Taxation Matter 
Insurance 
Rates. Taxes & Fees 
Advertisemant 
Mlscellan&Qus Expanses 
Loss tin sala of fixed AMets 

TOTAL: 

I YNrand&don I 
31.03.2024 I 

<322 
0.16 

, , 
I:'(urend.d on 
" 31..(13.2023 , 

31.32 
0.09 

43.38 I' 31.41 

, 

0." 
021 

•. OS 

16.82 
21.99 

11.21 

0." 
1.S9 
021 
0.11 
0.12 
W 
1." 

0." 
0." 
3.49 
4," 
0.42 
1.02 
0." 

811.96 

, 

0." 
'" 
1.211 

27.11 
29.31 

7.49 

1.11 
2.13 
0.36 
0.33 
0.07 
0.55 
1.33 

0." 
0.08 
3.S3 
4.32 
0,42 
0.15 

78.60 
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SANJeEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES , 
Chartered Accounlants' 

NIW lSpAT INQUSTRI§S LlMII!!D 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL SIATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 311}\ Itlfi,BCH2224 181. In l.Ikhl 

23. TAX EXPENSES 

(I) Income tax Ixpen .. , (blnefIta) 
Current tax; 
Current lax 
Tax refund I rl!Versai pertaining 10 earlier ye31'l1 

Oefe~ tax: 
Deferred lax 

Total Tax expense' (benefit) 

28.97 
1.61 

(1.39) 

29.19 

" 

, 

56.48 
0.22 

(0.73) 

sui 

(b) ReconcUl&tlon of effecliYe tax rab! : 
A reconciliation of income tax eXpense applicable to accounting profit I (loss) before t!IX at the.'statutory Income 
tax rale \0 'recognised Income tax expense klr the year Ind~ted are as follows: . 

DESCRIPTION 

Ne! Il\CICIme before taxes 
Enacled tex rete In India 
Computed tax eXpense 
tncreaselfredu£tionJ in tax" on acgountof: 
Incoma exemplli'om taxation /!lems not deductible 
Effect 01 tax pertaining \0 prior years 
Till< expense for the year 
Effective Income tax rate 

CURRENT YEAR 

110.20 
2S.17'l\1 

27.74 

(0.16) 
1.61 

29.19 
, ,. .. 

PREVIOUS YEAR 

222,n 
25.17% 
'56.07 

(0.32) 
0." 

55.96 
211.12 

Statuiory Income Taxes are 8Sa8"ed as per the prollislons 01 section 115BM of the Income TaJ( Act. 1961, 

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Net profit after tax as per Statement of profit and Loss 
attributable \0 Equity Shareholders 

Welllhied averag& No. of Equity Shares 

Baal(: and Dilllted Eam!ng per share (Rs.) 

Face value per equity shere (Rs.) 

81.02 

600.000 

13.50 

10.00 

I I 

'I , 

166.80 

600.000 

27.80 

10.00 

Page 113



SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Cham.red AI;COIIlIUIms;1 

, 
N!MJ !SPAT INOUSTBIES UM!TEO , 

, 
NOlES Ojj FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDEp31st MARCH 2024 

25, FJNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

(BI, In Llkh) 

25,1 Capita! BI.k Mln.gemant 

The Company being in a capital Intensive Industry, Its objective is to maintain a strong credit rating, heanhy capital 
ratios and astablish a capital structUI'8 thai ..... ould maximise tha I1.I!um to stakeholders throug'h optimum mix of 
debt and equity. .' 

The Company's capital requirement Is mainly to fund its capac/ly" expansion, llIj'layment of princ:lp~! ~nd Interest 
on Its bol1'owIngs. The prIncipal source of funding of the Company has been, and;$ expeclad 10 continue to be, 
cash gerwrated fiom Its operations supplemented by funding rrom bank borrowings and the capital markels. 

" 

The Company regularly oonslders other 6nanc:lng and refinancing opportunities to diversify Its debt pmfile, reduce 
Interest cost and elongate the maturity of its debt portlaUo, amI closely monitOl$ lis Judicious ailocallon amongst 
competing capital expansion projects to capture msrket opportunities at mInImum risk. 

The Company monitOrs Its capitaJ using gaaling ratio, which is nat debt divided to totel equity. Net debt Includes, 
Interest bOOnng loans and bolfOWIngs less cash and cash equlvalenls,6ank balanOOll othar then cash 8Ild cash 
equivalents. . 

25,2 Ctllporlu oflinlOcllllpllrupl!nl! 

.. -

liabilities 
at amortl.e co.t 

25.211 
38.95 

'''' 65,58 

132.85 
11.79 
74.15 

100,87 
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WB.I:J ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

SANJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIATES 
Cherlentd AC(;C\Ifllimla " 

" 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOB THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2924 

26. Financial risk management 

The Company Itas a Risk Management Committee 8SIiIblialted by itl Boerd of Dlreclol$ for o~ereeelng the Ritk 
Menagement Framework and developing and monitoring the Company's risk menegement ·pollcles. The risk 
manBg&meni poIIc:ies ara esiabnsltad to ensure timely Identification and evaluation of risks. !Ji8tting acceptable 
risk thresholds. odefllifyjng and mapping controls agelnst these risks. monitor the risks and their nmils. improve 
rlsk awareness and transparency. Risk managemant poliCies and systems are reviewed regularly to rellact 
changes In the market conditions and thl Company'a actIVitils to provide reliable Informalloo to 'tha Management 
lind the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management framework In relation to the;rlsk faced by the 
Comoanv. 

Thl risk management poncias alms to mlligate the foIowing rislll artslnG from lite flnanclallnatrumants: 
- Market risk 
- Credit risk and 
- Liquidity risk 

2".1 Market rl.k 

Marl<at risk Is the risk that the fair vplue of Mura cash flows of a financial Instrument will flucluale bacausa of 
changn lsi the marl<et prices. Tha Company Ie exposed In the onIlnary COlII'M of Ita business to riab related to 
chan{18S in foreign rurrency excllanas rates. commodity prices and Il'lIerest ralle. ' 

Tha Company seeks to minimize Ihe effects of these risks by using derlvetive finanCial instruments to hedge rItk 
exposures. The use of flnencial derivatives Is governed by tha Company's poIloles approved ,by the Board of 
Directors, whlclt provide written pindple& on foreign exchenge risk. Interest rate risk. credit·risk. the use of 

financial derivatives lind nolHialivative financial instruments. and the Invastmant Qf excess nquldity. Compliance 
..... ~h policies and e~ure limits Is reviewed by thl Management and the Internal auditors on I continuous bull. 

The Company does net enter Into or trade financial Instruments, Including darivatlves for speculative purposes. 

26.1.1 Commodity pdcI risk 

The Company's revenue Is exposed to the merket rtsk of price IluctuaHons re/eted to the sale of its products 
(Buttons). Market klrces generally detarmine prices for the butloos sold by the Company. These prices may be 
Influanced by factors such as demand and suppty. prodllC!lon cosb (Including the costs of ra ..... ' material Inpula) 
and global and regional economic Condltlonl and gfOWth, Aclvarse changes In any of \hes.e fac:tors may reduee 
the revenue that lite COmpany earns from the sale of lis produc:ts . 

. 
The Company primarlty procured ~s ra ..... materials i. e, Rasln. Styrene, Pigment & Cllemlcals etc. In the open 
marl<ei from third partlas during thl financlll yaar ended 31.03.2024 and Is therefore subject to fluctuations In 
prices. 

The Company alms to sell Ihe products al prevaITing market prices. Similarly Iha Company procures key raw 
materials like Rasin. Styrene. PIgment etc. based on prevailing market retes.a Iha selling pricai of buttons and 
the prices of Input raw materiel, move In the ... ma direction, 

The Company as a matter of policy has IlOl hedged tha comodfty fisk. 

The following table detells the Company's sensitivity to a 5% movement in the Input plice of '~esin, Styran!!, 

Pigments .ele. Tha sensitivity analysis includes onty 5% change in commodity for quamity sold or 

consumed during Ihe year, INith all othervariablu held constant. Aposillve ellincraase In 

prcflt where tha commodity prices Increase by 5%. For a 5% reductlon In , there would be a 

comparable Impact on profit, and the balances below would be negative. 
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26.1.2 Interetl rate rHlk 

Interes! rate risk Is Ihe risk that the fair value or future cash flOWS of !I financial Instrument will,f1uctua18 because 
of changes In rnarket Interest /ales. The Company is exposed to Interest rate risk because funds 1119 borrowed at 
both fixed and Hosting Interest rates. IntereS rate risk Is rneasured by usIrllIlhe cash flOW sen~ltiv!ty lOr changes 
In vlll'lable Interest rate, The borrowings of the Company ara prmclpel~ denornlnated In rupees with a rnix 01 fixed 
and IIoating rates of Inlerest. The Company has exposure to Interest rate risk, erislng princIpally on changes in 
MCLR rate and lIBOR rates. The rIsk Is managed by the Company by rnaintainlng an appropl1ate rnill; between 
fixed end Hoating rete borrowill!lB. 

II Interest rstes had been 100 basis points higher I !ower and all other variables wen. held oonstent. the 
Ccmpany"s prolill'or the year ended 31 March 2024 would decrease !increase by Rs. 11,785/- (for the year ended 
31 Merch 2023: dec:rease I inCl&ase by Rs. 6.4301-). This Is mainly attnbutable to the Compeny's elCpOsure to 
IntereBl/ales on its venable rate bclrrowings. 

26.2 CredIt risk Management 

Credit risk refers 10 the risk that a counterparty will default on 118 contractual obligations resulting In finanCial loss 
to the Company. Credit risk encompasses of bclth, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of 
creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company has adopted a polICy of on~ dealing with 
crec!ilwolthy counterparties. ' 

CuslOlnBl credit risk Ia managed centrally by the Company and subject to established policy, procedures and 

control relating 10 cuBlomer credit risk management. C""dlt quality of a customer is assessed based cn an 

extensive credit rating &eOl'llcard and Individuel credit nrrltl defined In ac:cordance with the asMISment. 

Credit risk on receivables Is also mJtigated by securing the same against IBUers of credit aOO guarantees of 
reputed nationalised and private sector banks. Tntde receivables consist of a large numbar of customars spread 
Beross dlvel'$B tndu.trlea and geographical ereas with no significant corwenlration of Cfed~ risk. No sIngle 
ClJstOl1'lar accounted fer 10% or mol'll of ravenue In any of the years indIcated. The culstand"lllg trnda receivables 
ara regularly monitored and appropriate action Is taken lOr colleclion of overdue rece'vables. 

, 

71.60 
2.66 

Page 116



SANJEEV ANAMD & ASSOCIATES , 

NIRAJ !$PAT INDUSTRIES UMlTED 

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2Q24 IRs. In lIkh) , 
26.3 LiquIdity rI'k manag6iu.nt 

Liquidity risk reierstO the risk of finanelat distress or extraordinary high finarteing costs arisIng due to shortage of 
liquId funde In a s~ua~on where business conditions unexpectedly deteriorate and requlrl~g financing. The 
Company raqulres funds both for short term cpera~onat needs as well ea for long term capital6),;penditUre growth 
projecls. The Company generates sufficient cash flaw for opemlions. which together with the Elv311abie cash and 
caah equivalents provide Ilquidfly In the short-tlrm and long-term. The management of thl COmpany has 
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for Company', short. medium and tong-t8fTll 
funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by malrtainlng adequate 
reserves. banking facll~ies and reserve borrowing facilities. by coolinuously monltorlng forecast and actual cash 
flows. and by matching the maturity profilas cf flnenclal essets and lIablNtlee. ' 

The followl/1g !ables dataff the COmpany's remainIng cootractual maturity lot its non-derillative financial liabilities 
with agreed repayment parleds and its oon-darivative finandar assets. The tables have been drawn up besed on 
the undiseounted cash flows of finandal liabilities baaed on the eerllest d.te on which the Company can be 
re~ulred to pay. 

Uquidity eJCpOtIure a. at31 March 2024 

DESCRIPTION C1YHr ;. 1 Ylllr TotIl, 

Flnartelat Inlts 
Trade receivables 38.95 - 39.95 
Cash and cash equivalents I." - 1." 
Other financial a' . 21s , -
Totll financlat .. MIa ..... - 40.29 
Flnanc:laillabnilkls 
Long term borrowings . 132.65 132.65 
Short temi borrowings 11.79 - 11.79 
Trade payables 74.15 . 74.15 
Other financial nsbllitlea -
Total financial liabilities ".94 132-65 218.58 

Liquidity npoaure .. at 31 March 2{)23 
• 
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27. RE' ATED PARTY DISCLOSURE: 

28. 

Name of Related partlea and description of relationship with whom transltdiona have taken place during the 
year.-

(a) Key Management Personnel: 

COl 

Smt. Vaiahali ChaudhrY 
Sh. Chaltsnya Ch~udhry 
Sh. Nlra) Chaudhry 
Sh. Shadman Khan 

OfIVII Infrastruclure PvL Ltd. 
SpJdBrman infrastructure PvL Ltd. 
Lupin Infrastructura Pvt. Ltd. 
Amanat Buiidenl Pvt. Ltd. 

Tha COmpany'a related party tranaactlollll during the )'Nf are ea hatow : 

Interes! Peld 
Loans Taken 
Loans Repaid 

Loana Ad~nced 
Loans ReceiVed bacI( 

Interest Eamed 

Key Marr.lgemeni 
Personnel 

20.10 9.60 
0.03 

0.97 

• 

• • 

• 

• 

188.75 211.50 
180.57 132.70 
81.28 68.83 

The tIbova rstated party InformetJon have been dlsdesed to tha elCfenlluoh p"rtles have bien Idanlitled by the 
management on the beals ofln(ormetlon availeble. Thl, has been relied upon bytha Auditors 

provided NIL (previOUS Year Ra. Nil) 

, 
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I'Prgvious Year 29. VALUE Of IMpoRTS ON elf BMii 
Capital Goods 

30. INCOMEfeXPENDffijRE IN fQREIGN CURRENCy 

EXPENDITURE 
EARNINGS 

31. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

31.1 Statement of Compllsnce 

CUrrent Year 

CuwmlYHr 

Nil 
Nil 

, 
• 

• 

prtylous VUr 

Nil 

N' 

flnanelal Statements have been prepared in aCCOrdance wllh the aceounllng principles genefilKy acceptad In 
India ineludlng Indian AccOUnting Standards (lnd AS) prescrlbee under tM section 133 of the j:=ompanles Act. 
2013 read wllh ruIa 3 of !ha Companies (Indian Accounting standards) Ruies, 2015 and the Companlas 
(Accounlillg Standards) Amerdmenl Rules. 2016. The !IfoIes.ald ftnanc!al elatemenl' have been approved by tha 
Board of Directors In the meeting held on 29Ih Mav 2024. . 

31.2 Ba.1i of Pre~t1on of Ananelal SbbImams 
Thasa bn(:jal stalemartls have bean prepared In accordance with !he accounting policies. set oot below and 
ware consistenHy applied to ell periods prtl~ unless Dlherwiae .tated. 

The financial ~tatements have been prepanKI on a gelng concern basis using historical C!.>SI: crnwantion and on en 
a<:cruw method of accounting. 

Company'. nn.nel.! slltemenls are presented In Indl.n Rupee. n, whleh Is a!so Its fUnetIonal currency. 

:n.3 Property, Plant & Equlpmanl 
Property. plalll and equipment era stated at coal, nat d recovlJ18b1e ta~es. trade dlSCOt.!nt .nd rebales less 

accumufaled deprecildion ancllmpslrment losses, ff any. Such cosllncludes pu!Chase price, borrowing east and 

any east directly altribulable to bringing the assets to Its working CDlldition for its intended use, net charges on 

foreign exchange COntracts and adjustments artslng from SJechange rate variafions attrlbutabla to tlla assets. 

Subseque!'l costs are ineluded in !he assers canylng all1DlJnt or reeognisad as a separate assai, sa appropriate, 
DlJly when ij is probable that fulure economic beneflls 8$SOClated with !he item wiIIllow to the anilly end !he CQ3t 
can be measured ren.bly. 

Expenses Incurred relating to project, net of illCl;>!Tle earned during the project development slaQe prior to Its 
in!ended use. are CDllsidarad al pre. operative a~pen58S and dl$cJoaa4 under Capi!al Work· in - Frogreu 

Depreciation on property,lieri and equipment Is provIded using streight IIna method b"sed on ustpfuJ rife orlhe 
assets as prescribed In Schedule II to lhe Companies Act, 2013 
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31.4 Inventory 
In~entories ere staled et the bwer of cost end net realizable ~alue except in case of waste and \;cr.tpe which are , 
valued at net realizabie value. 

Cost of raw malwllneiudes cos! of PUrehilS8 and other <:0315 Incumld In blinglng the Inven!orl" to their present , 
location and condition. Cos! offinillhed goods and WOIk. in progress Include cost of direct materials and labcurand 

a proporl/on of menufecturi~ overheads besed on the normal operating capacity but axcludlng borrowlng costs. , " 

3US Revenue Recognition 
Revenue Is measured 81 the felr value of the consideration racelvad Or receivable. The Company recognizes 

re~enlJ8$ on asie of products. net of discounts, returns, sates taxee .nd duties when the product. are delivered to 
customer or when delivered to ;II carrier fer export sale. when significant risks and r'I:IWiIfds of ownership pass 10 

the customer. Sale of products is presented gross of manufacturing taxes like mlclse duty wherevm: epp~cable. 

Revenua from sate ofweste and scrap ara Included in revenua. 

, 
Intareal Income from a fin"ncialassat Is recognised when it Is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Intersst Income ill accrued on a time basis, using 
effective interesl rate. 

31.6 Employee Benefit 
Contributions 10 Provlden! Pundt a defined contribution plan are made In IICC(lrdance with the statute, and are 
rllCOlJlllze<I iI8 In expanse when employees Mve rendered service ent~nng them to !he contribution. 

Company's contribution to stalo defined contribUtion p!a.n namely, Employee Stato Insurance are made in 
accordance with the statute, and are recognized as an 8JCpenses when emplqyees have rend8l9d services 
enliUing them to the contribution. 

31.7 BorrowIng Cost 
Borrowing coSIlI thai are attributable to the acqulsi~on or consbudion of qualifying assets am ClIIpitaiW3d as part 
of Ihe cost of such nHis. A quanfylng asset Is one thel necessarily 15kes substlontlal period of lime to get re,dy 
for ~, Intended use. All olher borrowing co.ts are cherged to profit and Loss lICC(lunt. 

31.8 Foreign Currency Transaction 
The functional CUmlncy of the Compeny Is d81ermlned on the basis of the primary economic environmelllin which 
~ OplJ'illes. The funetlonal currency of the Comp.any 1& indian Rupee (j. 

The m.llS3ctlons in currencies other than the en~ly's funclionel CUmlncy (fureign currencies) are recognIsed allhs 
rates of ex<:hanllB pre~smng el the dales of the trenaaellons. At the end of each reporting parlod, mone!sry lIem' 
denomlnsted In foreign currancies ere retranslated II the re!es praveIIlng at that <late. Non-monetery Items carried 
et fair value that am denominated In foreign currencies are retremolaled at the raOO$ prevailing ~t the dele wilen 
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary Items !hat are measured In tenn$ of historical cost In a foreIgn 
ourrency are not rettansleted. 

El(Chango dlffsrenC88 on monslary lIems are recognIsed in Slale"",nt of profit end Loss In the period In which 
they arise. 
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31.9 Flrtllnclll lnatrumenl:l 

31.9.1 Finllnclal Aslets 

31.11.1.1 !nltllli .-.eognrtlon lind meliliurement , 
All financial assets are Initially reCOgnized at fair value. Transaction costs thilt are directly atlliblltablQ to the 
acquisition of financial assets. whIch are not at faIr value are edjusted through profd or lois 011 InItial reeognijion. 
Purchase and aaIa of financial useta are recognIsed USlr19 trade dale eccounlitl9. 

31.9.1.2 Subsequent mlNlauremanl 

31.9.1.2.1 Finanelllllietl carrltd ahmortl"d Coe!: . 
A financial asset Is measured at amortised cost II It Is held within a bUSiness modal whose oblaotJve Is to hold the 
asset in drder to collect COI1lnK:tual cash fIoW5 and the conllat:tual terms of the financial asset give risa on 
specified dates to cash flows that are soIaly payments of principal end interNt on the principal emount 
cutstandlng. 

31.9.1.2JI Financial aasatl at fair Yaluethrough othsr comprehensive Incorns (FVTOCI) 
A financial asset is measured at FVTQCI if it III hald within a bus/nasa model whose obJee\ive Is ac/lievecl by both 
conecting contraCiual Clsh Hows end le/ling finenclal aasate and tile contractual terms of the Hnlncial uset give 
rise on spaclfied d,," to cash !lows that are solely payments of principal and !r'lIeresl On the principel amount 
outstanding. 

31,9.1.2.111 FlnanclalaSl1tD atfalr value through prom or 10" (FVTPL) 
A financial assatwhlch Is not ctasslfied In any 01 Ihe ebove categories are measured at FVTPL 

31.&.1.3 ImpaIrment of Financial assets 
Ths Company assesses on e forward loolting basis the expected credit los_ auoclated with Ita assets camed 
at amdrt/sed cost and FVOCI debt Instruments. The impaIrment methodology applied depends on whether there 
has been a sJgnilicant Increase in cred~ risk_ 

31.9.2.1 InItial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities. lire rooognized at fair value and in cese of IoPns, net of directly attributable cost Feea of 
retuning rtlllure ere dIrectly recognlsad In the Statemllnt of Profit end Losa .a finance cost 

31.&.:U SubsequentmlNlsurement 
Financial rlllbmijes are cerried at "mortlzed cosII,I51ng the afflICtive InIet'esi method. For trade and o!OOr payables 
maturing wfthln 01111 year from thll balance IShllllt dele. !he carrying IImounta IIpproxlmate felr vslue dUll to Ihe 
short meturily 01 theae Instrumeni&. 

31.&.3 Dlll'e\:ognltion of Financial Instrumentl 
The Company dllrecognlzes e fil'lllncJ.1 .saet when the eontrac!1,III1 righis to Ihe caah !lows from the finenollil 
asset expire or Itlransfera the financial asset and the transfer Qualifies for dsrecognffion under lnd J:.S 109. A 
financiat nahllily (or a part of a financial lIabllity) Is derecognlzed from the Company's Balance Sheet wilen tha 
obilgation specified in tha eonlnK:t la discherged or cllncelled or 1IJQlirea. 
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31.10Tax.lion 
Income 1ex ei<pef1se repre&ents the sum of the 1ex currenijy payable and deferred tax, 

31.10.1 Currant Tax 
CUrflll! tax I, lila amount of tax pay,ble based on the taxabl8 profit fur tha year as detflmllned Iii accordllnce with 
the provisions of section 115BAA olthe Income TexAc!. 1951. ,; 

31.10.2 Differed Tax 
Defamod tax I, recognised on temporal}' dll'ferences between the Clltlylng amounts of assels end llabI!ities In the 
finalX:ial stetemenls and the ...... 8Sponding 1ex bases used In the computation oflaxable profit . 

The CjlO'Iying ,moLllll 01 defarTed tax I.sets It reviewed at th' end of aeel! r.portlng pariod IIXl' reduc.d to tha 
exlent th,t II Is no longer probebll that sufficient taxable proms wII ba available to allow all or Plrt of the asset 10 
be recovered. 

Deferred tax sSMts end nabllltlM are measured at tile tax retealhal are expected to apply In the period In whlcl! 
the "ability' Is settled or Iha ,ssel realised, based on tax rates (and 1ex laws) thai I'oave o&en enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peliod. 

Defenvd tax assets and defenvd tax IlebilillH are offset If a legally enfurCNbil right exists to sat off CUiTant tax 
,SMts agaInst ClNl'8nllax IlabRltles and \t\o <.lelerr&d IDe8 relate to Iho same taxable entity an<,! the seme taxe~OI'l 
euthority .• 

31.11 Preyl.lon 
Provisions are recognIsed when the Company has a presenl obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, It Is probable lllat an outflow of resources embodying economIc benefits will ba requll'ed to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estImate can be made of the amourrt olthe obligation. 

If the efIaet 01 the time v,llIft of money III materIal. provlslcns ate dIscounted usIng a cummt pre-1ex rate that 
refiects. When appropriate, the risks specffic to the liablroty. When discounting Is used. the ino Fse In the 
provision due to !he passage of lime Is recognised as e linarn::a cost 

31.12 ~mlnlJ Per 8h .... 
Basic """lIngs per share Is computed by cflVldlng the profit I (loss) alter 1ex by the wel,ghled average number of 
equity sbares outstanding during lila year. The Wl1lghled average number of equity shares outstandIng durinlltha 
yaar is edjusfed fur lraasUI}' shares. bonus Issue, bonus ellment In , rights ISBUII to axistlng sharehokleno. sh,re 
spIlt and reverse shere apR! (consolldallon or sh,res), 

Diluted earnings per share is computed by lividlng the profit I (loss) after tal( as adjusted fur dividend. Interest and 
other chasges to expense or income (net of any attrlbut.ble taxes) remllng to the dllutfve potenllal equity sheres, 
by the weighted IY8!'I!IJII number of equity ahares conSIdered for deriving basic earnings per share and the 
weighted average ,""mbar of edulty sharas whICh could have been Issued on the conversion of an dllulflle 
potential equity sharas Including the treasury shares held by the COmpany to satisfY the exercise or the shara 
options by the emptovees. 
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32. CRln2AL ESTIII.TION AHD JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of financial stalamenls requlres the use of alXOUnting es~1'I\aIes whk:i1, by de'~nltlon, will seldom 
eq~al the actual results. Menagement also nalld, to llxerclse /Udgllmenl In applvlng the CCr'l)peny's .ccountlng 
pOIieI!I!I. 

This note proVides an OVl1rviaw of the 8'8<iIS that moolVed e higher degree or judg'm&I1t or Complexity, end of 
Iiams whlch.re mora ijkely to bs materially .djusted due 10 astlmatea and _umptlons turning oulto be different 
then those orlginatrv assessed, Detailed rd'ormetton about each orlheslIlIstimates andjudge~nl& III inclUded In 
relevant nolllS tOgether with Information about the basIs of calculalian for each affected Hr'l8 ~em In the financial 
statements. 

The arees InvolvIng critical estBTIalas or Judgements are: 

- Estimation of useful nves of property, plant and equipment _ Nole 1 
Property. plent and equIpment represenl a significant proportion of the asset base of the COmpanV. The charge In 
I'ftpectolpariodicdepreclallonlsderivedafterdetermlnlng en estimate of an asset's eJq>eCled usefullile end the 
expected residual value at 1hiI end of its rife. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are 
detenninod by the management at tha mne the asset is acquired and reViewed periodically, Including et eech 
Hnancial yaar end. The llvet./IRI based on hIstorical experiellCa with ,Imllar assets as well .. anticipation of tuture 
evenl$, wnlCh may Impact Ihelr Ille, such U chilnges In technical or collVll&lClal obsoia$ciIonce arisIng from 
changes o. improvements In production or from a change In market demand of the product or, service output of .,-
• Estimet/on of Provisions -Nole 14 

- Estimation of CUlT8nt tax expanse lind payable - Nole 23 
The Company'. tax Jurisdiction Is India. Slgnfflcanl judgements are Involved In detennlnlng tile proviSion tor 

Income taxas, if any, Including amourd expected 10 bs paid/recovered tot uncertain tax ~sltlons. Further. 

Significant Judgement is exertised to ascertain amoont of deferred tax asset (DTAJ that could be recognised 

besed on the prQbeblllty that Mure taxable prollts win be available against which OTA can bo utUlzed and amount 

oftemperalY difference In which OTA can not be recognised on want or probsble taxabla proftts 
• 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are basod on historical experience ind other factors. 
Includ"lIlg expeC\.lllions of future events that may have a financial Impacl on the company and that'AI believed to 
be relllIOnable under the clrcumslances. 

33. The Company uses sn accounting sottw.. for m,/nlalnlng Its book8 of account whIch did not had a laature of 
recording audit lfall (edit log) facility and Ihe same was not operated Ifuougiloul the yaar tor an relevant 
trensactions raconIed In the accounting software. 

34. The previous period figure. have been regrouped I reclassified I reamtnged, wherever nacs·Ury to conlJrm 10 the 
CUlT8nt yea' pl'llSllfltalfon. 
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35. KeY Ratios 

,., 

(bl Deb! Eq(jfy Rafoo (iI> liTes) 
Jot.1 !leh!!! 
TC!IIIEQIOIy 

Ie) Debt $er>i"" Coverage R8Uc (In tJmeo) 
E8IDTA 

(Imeresl Expenoe + F'Ii-J;Iple Rllpoymenta 
made dur\n;the I'8r1od for long !em! <IebII) 

(d) Return "" E<;ulty RO'tia I'lloj 
Net PmIiI "lid, Tl!l!: 
Ao .... HatWortl1 

,., 

" TraM Rec;ol."4b1l tumo.e< RIIUc (In llmu) 
BliVl""1t from Q~~tl!~1!!l 
A"""'ge r""", RecelYablo 

'01 Tre"" Pe.,u MnO\l8r RatIc (10 TlmeeJ 
Nat Pw-.na"" 

A"""'ge T_ Pa)'lblell 

(0' , 

r" 

~1 Rerum on C8pt!a1 Employed ron Urnes) 
Prom ",,10m Inte ..... t. T ... and ElccepUonaI 

0.11 

100.13 

6.45% 

111.16 

." 

", 

"'" 
24.84% 

0-07 

Au,3111 

"""''''' 
10.63 

0, t 1 

2B.63 

14.73% 

lM5 

7.06 

,~ 

0.47 

29.95% 

O_l~ 

I, , 

Vorl,,""" 

32.58% n.. veri .... "" I, 00 a= ..... of de."... 
In cu"""t ~.blllll" I. comP."" to 
preVIOUS year. 

SB4.95% Tl1e val''''' ..... is 00 8C1:101ftl\ or In~ .. e 
In 6crrowl'lgS a' oi>~ to prel'fcus 
\'8lr. " 

-5S.2t% The ""nonce is en .""""ne or d.."., .... 
In prom _ WI as comparM 10 
previa", year 

-36.63% Tl1e van.oce Is en .""""'" 01 decra.se 
In roVMoe!rom OJ;liatiolo ... compared 
10 prelliaul year 

, 

-45.85% The variance II en aece ..... or <!ecru •• 
In Alvenoe rrcvn OPIr1lUQ<I .. com,o.~ 
10 p""'''''. year. 

-17.1:./1% 

-55.96% The van.nce iI; on Recount 01 docreas8 

In profit •• 0>Il1pared to p_ ye.r. 
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NIRAJ IspAl INDUSTRIES W'fEP 

SANJEEV ANANO & ASSOCIATES 
C...,.,cd AI:cour>tII'ItI 

tiOTES QN f INAtiCIAl, STA.TEMENT FOR Tl1E YEAR ENPED 31st MARCH 2024 

R. Thl! Company don nol haYtI any benaml ... """Ity. """"" allY proc: etllll91 "" been initillt.d Of pendirlg againBt 
thl! COonpeny for holding any benaml Pf"D9tlrty; 

b. TI\8 Com~y lias I'IO! InKleII Of InvMtI.d In Crypto cumotlcy Of VllloJAI CuPT&nc)l !luring the firlanclel yea.f, 

c. TIle Compao., lias I\Ot 1\dII»I I\Ad OJ Ioalllld OJ irtllesllld fundi 10 any Dlhe-r pltfWl1(s) OJ entity(ia'J. including fOfeign 
entities ttnterme<.liatle!J) willi 1M unclti"lltllndlnll thai tt-.1n11.,,,,,,jIp 'f aheII: 

(i) directly or IndiIwCIly lend OJ Invas1 In oller pel"8Cln$ or entities identffllKl in any manner willi ... : .'fIr by Or on 
behal" of !he toml*'Y (un"..,.. bltne4'o : ·jel) 01 

IiI) ~ an~ "~""IN. "BC...-"Ily Of the like 10 or 00 behal! of the J,IIIimllm befleliciar!es. 

d. The Company lias noIlt!\:I!IiIIed q lund tromll"Y ~(I) Of enlibf_}. including forelwn IInl/tle8 (1\Indini party) 
wIIh !he UnderilaNding (Wt\ethollec:ordtod In writln; or olherwlle) that the CompIiIny .I'lal~ 

(I) dirdy or Indiraelly lend or inveslln other persona or entities identified In ;any manner whII!SOItVIIr by or on 
lwlhalf 01 the fundirlg patty (urtimale bene~:iet:) Or 

(D) plO'o'kHI 8(]Y guarantee. se<:urity or the Ii!\II to or on beI!aU ot the ulimata beneiclarllr.. 

e. The Compan~ does not hliVe any such tratlSactlon wI\Ici1 is not rwcorded In tha booIt.I 01 toXounls!hat nat been 
IUrJlI"de<ed or d·1;k l"d H ineome 0Urini II"MI yall In ~ IP. HiWlHmIInl1 !.IndrI1 the lnoom, Tu Ad. 1961 
(.ueh n . Hareh or autVey or any other relevanl provlslolls 01 the Incomo Tex Ad. 19611 

I. The Company is not dlldared wilful dafau/tlll' by any bunk or lInalJ(l!all'lllllUl/onl or,lender durirlg tile year: 

;. The CompI!ny doH net ~ave any dlargll'l or oatlsf .. ctlon Whicl'l I, yeliO be reglst~red with ROC beyond !he 
st8!1IIet) period 

h. au.r1Itrly ... tvrn! or sloIlII/TiIII1I. 01 current PSeI. filed by tt-. COo'C*i, with b&nQ (If 1in-.ndal .... lltulionI_1n 
~rsame ... with !he bc:d:. oIl11:(:1OOnts. 

i. Tile ~ IIa$ used II<e boI""",lngs from blinks mel I'in.naa! instiMlonl kit" \". apedIIc pUrpo$l! for wtllch II 
WI! obUi!oed. 

j. me tit» <fe8d. of al ths Im/llOYllhle llrol*fiel dlsclo .... Ir: the financial ~I$ included Ir1 PfVIIIl i'ty. ptllnt 
ond equipmetl\ and CDj ·11 work......",ogoEII """ held In .... me oIlha COrnpaIIy as ~ lhe bIolance sheet dll'ls. 

ptfoor reporl of even daM attac:hed 
Far $AHJEEV ANAND & ASSOCIAT!:S 

Char1-a~ 
F" ..... Regn. No. OO1nlC 

.;:: I. ~T;' - r;;w., 
[S~mH Gu \11) 

"'" M.No. 42304~3 

Far & ON BEHALf OF BOARD 
FC)( NrRA.I tSf''''' T INO(JSTRIES L TO 

ClN" L2111leOl.I9a.5Pl.C02 III I 

0"",-
(Vllwll C~lua~ryl 0'_ 

Rio 01719640 

~(",)~ 
INI<ltI chaIdhry) 

CFO 

~ (" \l 
(CI1.~ Cll.ludtvy) 

Qmdor and·CEQ 
Din D68133IM 

. ~~== 
(StIaoSmoin ICh.-.) 

Comp8n~ SlICflIlary 
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Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Member(s) 

Registered Address 

Email Id Folio No /Client ID DP ID 

I/We, being the member(s) of ____________shares of the Accuvant Advisory Services 

Limited hereby appoints 

Name:…………………………………………………                                       E-mail 

Id:…………………………………... 

Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Signature:……………………………………………………………………………...., or failing him/her  

Name :…………………………………………………                                       E-mail 

Id:…………………………………... 

Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Signature:……………………………………………………………………….…….., or failing him/her  

Name :…………………………………………………                                       E-mail 

Id:…………………………………... 

Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Signature:………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 

35th Annual General Meeting of the Niraj Ispat Industries Limited to be held on the 

Monday, 09th day of September, 2024 at 01:00 P.M. at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary 

Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi-110006 and at any adjournment 

thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Ordinary Business: 

1. To consider and adopt the standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company 
for the Financials Year Ended March 31, 2024 i.e Balance Sheet as at 31st  March, 2024, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st  
March, 2024 along with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Chaitanya Chaudhary (DIN: 06813394), Director, 

who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
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Signature of Member(s) / Shareholder(s):  

Signature of Proxy holder(s): 

 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at 

the registered office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 

Meeting. 

 

 

Attendance Slip for attending 39th Annual General Meeting of Niraj Ispat Industries Limited 

ATTENDANCE SLIP – NIRAJ ISPAT INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

39th Annual General Meeting, Monday, September 09, 2024, 01:00 P.M.  

Regd. Folio No.____________/DP ID______________Client ID/Ben. A/C_______________No. of 

shares held_____________  

I certify that I am a registered member/proxy for the registered member of the Company and hereby 

record my presence at the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Company on Monday, September 09, 

2024, 01:00 P.M. at 5140-41/34, F/F Chaudhary Market Gali Peti Wali, Rui Mandi, Sadar Bazar, Delhi-

110006 

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters…………………..  

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature………………………………..  

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 

                                             

                                                                                        

 

 

 

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp 
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